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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Chau Cheok Wa

Ms. Yeung So Mui

Ms. Cheng Mei Ching

Ms. Yeung So Lai

Mr. Lo Kai Bong

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Tou Kin Chuen

Dr. Wu Kam Fun Roderick

Mr. Lo Wai Tung John

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Luk Chi Keung
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REGISTERED OFFICE
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Hutchins Drive
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The Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE

PEOPLE’S REPUBLIC OF CHINA (THE “PRC”)

3/F., Club House of Le Paysage
Buji Street

Longgang District, Shenzhen City
Guangdong Province, the PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 1201-1202, 12/F., China Merchants Tower
Shun Tak Centre

168-200 Connaught Road Central

Sheung Wan

Hong Kong

N\

2 \ Sun Century Group Limited Annual Report 2016

EEE

BITES
IR 2
BERisL L
WERL L
BEELL
B

BYFHATES
T E
ERER BN =
ERHREL

DEWE
e 3 S

2 ]
BEEHMITERRA

ot 3 55 R

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
The Cayman Islands

REARANE (PR ETEER

i B

TEERE

AT BE
S|

FIB 1SRG 32

EARATEE XN

&

iR

T 538 1 168-2005%
B
BHEBAE12#1201-1202%



Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company

4th Floor, Royal Bank House (Cayman) Limited

24 Shedden Road 4th Floor, Royal Bank House
P.O. Box 1586 24 Shedden Road

Grand Cayman KYA-1110 P.O. Box 1586

Cayman Islands Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

Tricor Investor Services Limited EEBSFTRERAT
Level 22, Hopewell Centre BB

183 Queen’s Road East 2R KER1835

Hong Kong & A 221E

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited ERERIT(BE)BRAF
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited FEIRTT (BE)BR AR
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited BB LBEERITERAR
China CITIC Bank 5 RTT

For other information relating to the Company, please contact ABRARARNEMER
Corporate Communications Department A EEME
website: www.sun1383.com #4E - www.sun1383.com

e-mail: ir@sun1383.com FH : ir@sun1383.com



Project name

Le Paysage

Project name

The Landale

Fushun Project

Project name

Gang Long City Shopping

Centre

Note:

Place

Shenzhen

Place

Chaohu
Shenyang

Site Area

(m?) Residential

43,538 90,015

Site Area

(m?) Residential

122,636 102,777
72,350 N/A
Place
Shenzhen

(1) Includes club house and car parking spaces

GFA (m?)

Shop  Others"

8,002 36,732

GFA (m?)

Shop  Others™

10,500 3,000
N/A N/A

Saleable Interest

Area Commencement/ attributable

Total (m?) completion date  to the Group
134,749 98,017 2008/Q1-2014/Q3 100%
Saleable Interest

Area Commencement/ attributable

Total (m?) completion date  to the Group
116,277 113,277 2005/Q2-2019/Q4 100%
N/A 195,345 2014/Q2-2019/Q2 90%

100% owned
by the Group

Leaseable area
(m?)

64,397
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Group Financial Summary
. iz AL B
EEFHEHE
Result 5
For the year ended 31 December
HE12A31BLEE
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETR ARBTT AREFL ARBTL ARETFTL
Turnover EEE 1,108,544 726,088 917,458 226,830 324,669
Increase in fair value RENENAAE
of investment properties MM 40,000 95,000 467,000 49,210 293,570
Reversal of impairment loss on inventories & EZ & 7 i/ - 13,367 59,612 - =
Impairment loss on inventories FEZREER (21,557) - - (57,000) 48,000)
(Loss)/Profit from operations mg (B8)/&f (50,195) 209,486 430,602 (331,452) 178,298
Change in fair value of financial derivatives ~ {T4A& BT A4
DrENES 7,138 - - - 8
Finance costs BEMAE (189,664) (296,431) (347,102) (211,070) (185,982)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of ~ FLEAEEAL
goodwil REEE (4,039) - (3,564) - -
Gain/(Loss) on disposal of subsidiaries HENBA RN
(B8)/ s 1,145 - (2,001) 100 17,719
(Loss)/Profit before tax BRI (B]) & (235,615) (86,945) 77,935 (542,422) 10,043
Income tax (expense)/credit R (RX)/H% (254,893) (158,987) (222,529) (36,091) 29,277
(Loss)/Profit for the year AEE (B8R) /&R (490,508) (245,932) (144,594) (578,513) 39,320
Other comprehensive expense for the year, FRBHEEMZERR
net of tax (234) - - - -
Total comprehensive (l0ss)/ rEE2E(BR)/
income for the year BNt (490,742) (245,932) (144,594) (578,513) 39,320
Total comprehensive (loss)/income attributable A7 Al A AE(E 2 E
to owners of the Company (BB) /A EE (490,620) (245,007) (143,727) (578,513) 39,320
Total comprehensive loss attributable to non-  JEHZIREZE(L
controlling interests rEBEET (122) (925) (867) - -
(490,742) (245,932) (144,594) (578,513) 39,320
Assets, Liabilities and Non-controlling Interests EE BERFERESR
At 31 December
#12R318
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
Non-current assets FREHEE 1,734,745 1,695,060 1,602,547 1,145,171 1,091,181
Current assets MBEE 1,344,826 1,091,388 2,566,096 2,814,178 2,284,350
Current liabilities nHEE (1,436,385) (2,789,114) (2,453,482) (3,163,602) (2,428,561)
Non-current liabilities FREHEE (1,250,741) (821,393) (1,408,529) (337,666) (176,250)
Non-controlling interests HFEfR R 730 5,217 4,292 - -
Equity attributable to owners of the KRAREBA
Company Elh s 393,175 81,658 315,924 458,081 770,720
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The board (“Board”) of directors (“Director”) of Sun Century Group
Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to announce the consolidated
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2016.

The Board does not recommend the payment of dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: nil). The Group will formulate
appropriate dividend policy in accordance with the development
needs in the future.

The Chinese government continued to implement a relatively loose
credit policies, coupled with the reduction of stamp duty rates and
lowered the proportion of down payments of the properties prices
in the cities without home purchase restriction. Those policies have
led to the real estate market continues to heat up during the year of
2016 and properties price went up along with the sales volume.

The Group has started to deliver Le Paysage to buyers since the
fourth quarter of 2014. With the heating up of Shenzhen property
market and we began to deliver the boutique high-rise building
residential units, the gross profit margin in property development
segment has increased from 39.04% in the year of 2015 to 42.85%
in the year 2016.

Looking ahead, we expect the government policies will remain
unchanged and the local governments will fine-tune and introduce
targeted policies based on growth properties stock, properties prices
and land prices. Given that the accumulated properties stock in the
first and second-tier cities in China have fallen to the ideal range, we
remain optimistic to the market conditions in the year of 2017 and
expect that there is still room for increase in properties prices and
land prices. In the meantime, the Group will actively examine the
developing real estate markets outside China. Asian countries, such
as Korea, Malaysia and Vietnam are among the initial target markets
of the Group.
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group completed
the acquisition of Sun Travel Ltd. (“Sun Travel”), which is principally
engaged in the provision of travel-related products and services.
On 6 February 2017, Sun Travel entered into an agreement with
Sun City Gaming Promotion Company Limited (“Sun City Gaming
Promotion”) in relation to the procurement of the provision of hotel
accommodation and related services. It is expected that Sun Travel
will provide an additional revenue stream to the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, Suncity Group
Management and Consultancy Limited (‘SGMCL”) was established
and is aimed to provide consultancy, advisory and technical services
for large scale resorts and/or gaming and entertainment facilities
in places with rapid growth in the tourism industry. On 27 February
2017, SGMCL entered into a non-legally binding memorandum
of understanding with an independent third party regarding the
provision of consultancy and management services to an integrated
resort project in Vietnam.

The Group will continue to explore and invest in potential projects
and business opportunities with good potential and to further
expand its tourism-related business to other countries in the Asian
market.

The Group is committed to bear its social responsibility and
contribute to the weak and poor. The employees of the Group have
actively participated in various charity activities involving cultural
education, disaster relief, environmental protection, health and
hygiene, as well as public transportation of the municipal. The Group
will continue to promote our corporate culture of dedicating sincerity
and love to the community internally, and bear our related social
responsibility.
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| would like to take this opportunity to thank the shareholders,
customers and business partners for their trust in, understanding of
and support to the Group over the years. Moreover, | would also like
to thank all staff for their tremendous effort and contribution. We will
continue to explore new business opportunities in the challenging
year ahead and strive for the best returns for our shareholders.

Chau Cheok Wa
Chairman

24 March 2017
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Turnover: Turnover comprised of sales proceeds of properties
delivered, property leasing income, hotel and integrated resort
management and consultancy services income and travel agency
service income. The turnover in 2016 increased 52.67% when
compared with 2015. In respect of sales proceed of properties
delivered, we have delivered residential units of approximately
24,351m? (2015: 18,842m?) gross floor area (“GFA”), which including
high-rise building units of approximately 13,868m? (2015: 15,779m?)
GFA, luxury high-rise building units of approximately 7,316m? (2015:
2,073m?) GFA and villa of approximately 3,167m? (2015: 990m?) GFA
in 2016. The travel agency service is a new business of the Group
and has generated turnover of approximately RMB1.24 million since
the acquisition of Sun Travel on 31 August 2016.

Other net expenses: In 2016, other net expenses was mainly
attributable to the net exchange loss. The Group has a number of
liabilities denominated in Hong Kong dollars (including in bank and
other borrowings of approximately HK$1,295.87 million). Due to the
depreciation of the Renminbi during the year, the Group is therefore
required to recognise the net exchange loss of approximately
RMB81.55 million.

Selling and distribution expenses: The increase in 2016 was
mainly due to the increase in advertising and commission expenses
for the sales of Le Paysage.

General and administrative expenses: The increase in 2016 was
mainly due to the increase in utilities charges in Le Paysage.

Other operating expenses: The increase in 2016 was mainly due
to the increase in impairment loss recognised in respect of trade and
other receivables amounting to approximately RMB316 million. The
Group assessed the carrying amount and the recoverable amount of
each individual receivable at the reporting date to ensure the carrying
amount would not exceed its recoverable amount.

Increase in fair value of investment properties: The increase in
2016 was mainly due to the prevailing market conditions.

Impairment loss on inventories: The amount represented the
impairment loss recognised for the difference between the inventory
cost and its net realisable value, as assessed by an independent
valuer.
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Finance costs: The decrease in 2016 was mainly due to the
decrease of interest-bearing loans during the year.

Change in fair value of financial derivatives: In December 2016,
the Company issued convertible bonds of HK$570 million to Fame
Select Limited, the major shareholder of the Company. The change
in fair value, as assessed by an independent valuer, of derivative
component has been recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. It is a non-cash item.

Impairment loss recognised in respect of goodwill: Represented
the impairment loss recognised on the goodwill arising from the
acquisition of the subsidiary, Sun Travel.

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: Represented the gain
recognised on the disposal of subsidiaries, Vanilla Rose Investments
Limited together with its subsidiaries to an independent third party.

Income tax expense: Income tax expense included current tax
and deferred tax. The increase of current tax was mainly due to
the increase of corporate income tax and Land Appreciation Tax
implication on the recognition of sales of stock properties in Le
Paysage and the recognition of the corresponding profits. The
decrease of deferred tax was mainly due to the decrease of deferred
tax implication on the increase in fair value of investment properties
arose during the year.

In 2016, property development income, property leasing income,
hotel and integrated resort management and consultancy
services income and travel agency services income accounted
for approximately 94.56% (2015: 91.93%), 5.33% (2015: 7.99%),
0.00% (2015: 0.08%) and 0.11% (2015: 0.00%) of the total revenue
respectively.

Total bank balances and cash and pledged deposits as at 31
December 2016 amounted to approximately RMB145.07 million
(2015: RMB30.43 million) which included approximately RMB55.48
million, US$0.01 million, MOP0.02 million and HK$98.25 million
respectively.
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The Group had total borrowings of approximately RMB1,165.14
million as at 31 December 2016 (2015: RMB2,038.26 million) of
which approximately RMB270.00 million were repayable on demand
or within one year; approximately RMB490.14 million were repayable
in the second year; approximately RMB130.00 million were repayable
in the third to fifth years, inclusive; and the remainings were
repayable after the fifth year. The Group’s borrowings carried interest
at fixed or floating interest rates. The Group’s total bank and other
borrowings divided by total assets as at 31 December 2016 was
37.83% (2015: 55.28%).

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had current assets of
approximately RMB1,344.83 million (2015: RMB1,991.89 million)
and current liabilities of approximately RMB1,436.39 million (2015:
RMB2,789.11 million).

As at 31 December 2016, bank and other borrowings of
approximately RMB680.00 million were secured by investment
properties, certain inventories and pledged deposits of the Group
of approximately RMB1,732.00 million, RMB488.54 million and
RMB1.34 million respectively.

The Group’s monetary assets, loans and transactions are principally
denominated in RMB. Except for a borrowing of HK$503.23 million,
all of the Group’s borrowings are denominated in RMB. The Group
did not engage in any derivative activities and did not commit to any
financial instruments to hedge its financial position exposure as at 31
December 2016.

For the details of contingent liabilities, please refer to the note 34 to
the financial statements.

The Group adopts a prudent approach with respect to treasury and
funding policies, with a focus on risk management and transactions
that are directly related to the underlying business of the Group.
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As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a staff force of
approximately 250 employees. Of this, most were stationed in the
PRC. The remuneration of employees was in line with the market
trend and commensurable to the level of pay in the industry.
Remuneration of the Group’s employees includes basic salaries,
bonuses and long-term incentives (such as Share Option Scheme).
Total staff costs incurred for the year 2016 was approximately
RMB34.17 million.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year 2016 (2015: nil).

For the details of events after the reporting period, please refer to
note 41 to the financial statements.

The Group is principally engaged in the development of residential
and commercial properties as well as leasing of commercial
properties in Guangdong, Liaoning and Anhui Provinces, the
PRC, and providing hotel and integrated resort management and
consultancy service and travel agency service.

Summary of development and status of existing projects are
reported in the following paragraphs.

Le Paysage: Le Paysage is in the boarder land of Luohu district
and Longgang district of Shenzhen, on the hillside of the east side
of Qingping expressway and Fengyi mountain tunnel. Le Paysage
consists of premier villas, residential units and retail shops with
planned GFA of approximately 135,000m?. In March 2013, the Group
launched pre-sales part of Le Paysage and was well received by the
market. The project is completed and to deliver in phases in the third
quarter of 2014 onwards.

As of 31 December 2016, total contracted sum of sales and
purchase agreements entered for Le Paysage is approximately
RMB3,204.15 million of which RMB2,729.70 million has been
recognised as sales. The balance of approximately RMB474.45
million is expected to be recognised as sales in the year of 2017
upon certain recognition citeria fulfilled.
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The Landale: The Landale formerly known as Vacation Water Town,
and is situated in Zhongmiao Town of Chaohu in Anhui Province. The
Landale consists of lake-side villas and residential units with planned
GFA of approximately 116,000m?. To cope with the rectification,
integration and development of Chaohu Scenic Area, the Group
planned to postpone the development progress of The Landale and
commence pre-sale of the project in phases in 2019 onwards.

Fushun Project: The Group acquired a land at Hua Mao Jie Dong,
Fushun Economic Development Zone in Liaoning Province, the
PRC. The site area of the land is approximately of 72,350m? with
a plot ratio of more than 1 but less than 2.7 and the planned GFA
of approximately of 195,345m?2. The land use of the land is for
commercial and residential use. The project is still in the initial design
and planning stage.

Hong Long Plaza: Hong Long Plaza is situated in Bao Min 2nd
Road, Baoan District, Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province, the
PRC. Hong Long Plaza is a commercial and residential complex
occupying a total GFA of approximately 172,630m?2. For residential
portion, it comprises three 25 to 27 storey towers with a total of
approximately 1,500 residential units erected on a 5-storey shopping
mall and a 2-storey basement for car parking. It is managed by
Shenzhen Sun Era Management Company Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group. The commercial portion of Hong Long
Plaza, namely Gang Long City Shopping Centre, comprise a total
GFA of approximately 64,397m? for a shopping mall. Gang Long
City Shopping Centre is held by the Group for leasing purpose and
is managed by Shenzhen Gang Long City Commercial Management
Company Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group.

Hotel and integrated resort management and consultancy represents
the provision of management and consultancy services to hotels and
integrated resorts.

Following the introduction of tourism style property development,
the Group acquired a subsidiary group in 2014 which is principally
engaged in operating hotel consultancy service in the PRC. For the
years of 2014, 2015 and 2016, the subsidiary group recorded a loss
of approximately of RMB4.62 million, RMB1.4 million and RMBO0.02
million respectively.
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During the year of 2016, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary,
SGMCL, has been set up for the opportunities of hotel and
integrated resorts in the Asian countries, such as Korea, Malaysia
and Vietnam. Subsequent to the year end of 2016, SGMCL entered
a non-legally binding memorandum of understanding with an
independent third party, regarding the provision of consultancy
and management services to an integrated resort project to be
developed in Vietnam.

In July 2016, the Group entered into a sales and purchase
agreement to acquire the entire issued capital of Sun Travel, a
company incorporated in Macau with limited liabilities to diversify its
business to the tourism related services business.

During the year 2016, travel agency service has generated of
approximately RMB1.24 million in turnover since the acquisition of
Sun Travel completed on 31 August 2016.

Subsequent to the end of reporting period, Sun Travel enter into
() a hotel accommodation procurement agreement and (i) a ferry
ticket supply agreement with Sun City Gaming Promotion, a related
company which is wholly-owned by Mr. Chau Cheok Wa (“Mr.
Chau”), the Chairman of the Company.

Pursuant to the hotel accommodation procurement agreement,
Sun Travel may from time to time to procure from Sun City Gaming
Promotion the hotel accommodation products, subject to the
cap of HK$120 million from the commencement date of hotel
accommodation procurement agreement to 31 December 2017.

Pursuant to the ferry ticket supply agreement, Sun City Gaming
Promotion may from time to time purchase from Sun Travel the ferry
tickets and other complementary services, subject to the annual
caps of HK$8.5 million in 2017, HK$10 million in 2018 and HK$10
million in 2019 respectively.
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Mr. Chau Cheok Wa, aged 42, was born in the Macao Special
Administrative Region. He joined the Company on 2 September
2011 as an executive Director and acted as the Chairman of the
Company on 8 November 2011. He engaged in the business
of operating and managing V.I.P. clubs in hotels. Mr. Chau
was previously an executive director and the chairman of Sun
International Resources Group Limited (Stock Code: 8029) (“Sun
International”), a company listed on the Growth Enterprises Market of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) and
resigned on 5 July 2013.

Ms. Yeung So Mui, aged 41, joined the Company on 5 October
2010 as an executive Director. Ms. Yeung was appointed as a
director of Yan Oi Tong Limited on 1 April 2013. Ms. Yeung is
experienced in corporate management. Ms. Yeung has been
appointed as executive director and the vice chairlady of Imperium
Group Global Holdings Limited (formerly known as JF Household
Furnishings Limited)(Stock Code: 0776)(“Imperium Group”), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange since 1
September 2016. Ms. Yeung So Lai, an executive Director, is the
sister of Ms. Yeung So Mui.

Ms. Cheng Mei Ching, aged 35, joined the Company on 2
September 2011 as an executive Director. Ms. Cheng holds a
bachelor degree in commerce (marketing and advertising) from
Curtin University of Technology in Perth, Western Australia. Ms.
Cheng has over the past adopted a pragmatic and proactive
management approach; and delivered solid performance in various
areas, in particular corporate management and internal control.
Ms. Cheng works at a subsidiary of Sun International since her
graduation and is currently an executive director of Sun International.
Ms. Yeung So Mui, an executive Director, is the sister-in-law of Ms.
Cheng.

Ms. Yeung So Lai, aged 39, joined the Company on 2 September
2011 as an executive Director and acted as the chief executive
officer of the Company on 1 February 2012. Ms. Yeung is
experienced in corporate management. Ms. Yeung was previously
an executive director and chief executive officer of Imperium Group
and resigned on 1 August 2016. Ms. Yeung is currently an executive
director and the chairman of United Pacific Industries Limited (Stock
Code: 0176), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Ms. Yeung So Mui, an executive Director, is the sister of
Ms. Yeung So Lai.
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Mr. Lo Kai Bong, aged 37, joined the Company on 9 March 2017
as an executive Director. Mr. Lo has obtained a Bachelor of Arts
degree from the University of Winnipeg in Canada. Mr. Lo is the
Chief Investment Officer of Suncity Group and has been involved
in business development of Suncity Group's overseas businesses
and is responsible for the corporate management and mergers and
acquisitions of Suncity Group. Mr. Lo is experienced in the gaming
industry. Prior to his appointment as an executive Director, Mr. Lo
was appointed as an executive director of Sun International.

Mr. Tou Kin Chuen, aged 40, joined the Company on 26 April
2012 as an independent non-executive Director, the chairman of
audit committee and the members of remuneration committee and
nomination committee. Mr. Tou is the principal of Roger K.C. Tou
& Co. Mr. Tou graduated from the Hong Kong Shue Yan University
(formerly known as Hong Kong Shue Yan College) with a Honours
Diploma in Accounting in 2001. He is experienced in audit,
taxation, company secretarial, insolvency and finance for over 19
years. Mr. Tou is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and an associate of the Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong. Mr. Tou has been the independent non-
executive director of Sun International and Milan Station Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 1150), a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange since 14 March 2011 and 22 July 2015
respectively.

Dr. Wu Kam Fun Roderick, aged 78, joined the Company on 26
April 2012 as an independent non-executive Director, the chairman
of nomination committee and the members of audit committee
and remuneration committee. Dr. Wu obtained his LL.B. degree
and Honorary Doctorate of the University from the University of
Buckingham, United Kingdom. Dr. Wu is also an Associate of
Chartered Institute of Arbitrators and a Barrister of the Inner Temple,
the Victorian Bar, Australia and the Singapore Bar. Dr. Wu was
awarded Diploma in Chinese Law by the then University of East Asia,
Macau, now known as the University of Macau. Dr. Wu has been at
the Hong Kong Bar for over 36 years. He is a practising member of
the Hong Kong Bar Association.
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Mr. Lo Wai Tung John, aged 48, joined the Company on 10
October 2012 as an independent non-executive Director, the
chairman of remuneration committee and the members of audit
committee and nomination committee. Mr. Lo graduated from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree of
Science (with honours) in Computer Science in 1991. Mr. Lo is
experienced in securities and finance industry for over 20 years. He
is currently the managing director (equities) and head of institutional
sales of SBI China Capital Financial Services Limited.
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The Board is pleased to present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 are set
out in note 38 to the financial statements.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 and
the financial position of the Group at that date are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and consolidated
statement of financial position on page 57 and page 58 of this
annual report respectively.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: nil).
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On 5 September 2012, the Company proposed to raise not less than
approximately HK$313 million before expenses and the set-off with the
shareholder’s loan by issuing not less than 1,254,184,050 offer shares
and not more than 1,320,181,518 offer shares at the subscription price
of HK$0.25 per offer share on the basis of six offer shares for every one
share of the Company on the record date. The open offer has been
completed on 9 January 2013 and the net proceeds from the open
offer amounted to approximately HK$244 million (after deducting the
cost and expenses in relation to the open offer and the set-off with the
shareholder’s loan). It was intended that such net proceeds were to be
used to fund payment of deposit for the acquisition of the entire equity
interest on Anhui Longsheng Property Development Company Limited
(“Anhui Longsheng”). Given the prolonged due diligence work on Anhui
Longsheng, in the interim period from 2014 to 2015, the Company
had redeployed a total of HK$206.6 million of the net proceeds of the
Open Offer for use in the existing property development project of the
Group. Due to that the legal disputes concerning Anhui Longsheng
has remained unresolved and there are no indications that they will
be resolved in the near future, the Board has resolved to terminate
the relevant agreement of intent for the possible acquisition of Anhui
Longsheng and cease discussions on such possible acquisition.
A termination agreement was entered into between the Company
and the relevant vendor in this respect on 11 August 2016. In the
circumstances, the Company intends to use the unutilised net proceeds
from the Open Offer of approximately HK$37.4 million as general
working capital of the Group. Please refer to the announcements dated
5 September 2012, 22 January 2013 and 11 August 2016, and the
circular dated 16 November 2012 for further details. The breakdown of
the use of proceeds is set out as follows:
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On 20 September 2016, the Company proposed to raise the gross
proceeds of not less than approximately HK$901.4 million and not
more than approximately HK$960.7 million by way of issuing not less
than 4,506,944,175 rights shares and not more than 4,803,587,904
rights shares at the subscription price of HK$0.20 per rights share
on the basis of three rights shares for every one share of the
Company on the record date. The rights issue has been completed
on 16 December 2016 and the net proceeds from the rights issue
amounting to approximately HK$892.92 million (after deducting the
cost and expenses in relation to the rights issue). Details of the rights
issue please refer to the announcements dated 20 September 2016,
7 October 2016, 13 October 2016, 25 October 2016, 14 November
2016, 15 November 2016 and 15 December 2016, the prospectus
dated 22 November 2016, and the circular dated 28 October 2016.
Such net proceeds have been used in the following manner:
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Details of the movements in the issued share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 28 to the financial statements.

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of Company’s listed
securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year.

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and note 31 to the financial statements
respectively.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution comprise share
premium, capital reserve and accumulated losses. The Company
has no reserves available for distribution to the shareholders at 31
December 2016 (2015: nil).

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 17 to the financial
statements.

Details of the investment properties of the Group during the year are
set out in note 18 to the financial statements.
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, the aggregate sales
attributable to the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers taken together accounted for 7.06% and 22.59% of the
aggregate of the Group’s total turnover for the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the aggregate purchases
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier and the five largest
suppliers taken together accounted for 68.21% and 77.74% of the
Group'’s total purchases for the year.

None of the Directors, their respective associates or, so far as the
Directors are aware, any shareholder who owns more than 5% of the
issued share capital of the Company has any interest in any of the
said top five customers and suppliers of the Group for the year.

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Mr. Chau Cheok Wa (Chairman)

Ms. Yeung So Mui

Ms. Cheng Mei Ching

Ms. Yeung So Lai

Mr. Lo Kai Bong (appointed on 9 March 2017)

Mr. Tou Kin Chuen
Dr. Wu Kam Fun Roderick
Mr. Lo Wai Tung John

The biographical details of the current Directors are set out on page
16 to page 18 of this annual report.
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The appointment of each Director is subject to retirement by rotation
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election in accordance
with the Company’s articles of association. All of the executive
Directors do not enter any service contract with the Company. All
of the independent non-executive Directors have entered a service
contract with the Company for a term of 3 years and subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the articles
of association of the Company and the Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Chau Cheok Wa, Ms. Yeung So Lai, Mr. Lo Kai Bong
and Dr. Wu Kam Fun Roderick shall retire from the Board by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

Other than disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered or
has proposed to enter into any service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not expiring or determinable
by the employing company within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.

Details of Directors’ emoluments on a named basis are set out in
note 13 to the financial statements.

The Company had received written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors of their independence pursuant
to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and both the Board and the
nomination committee considered that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent.
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As at 31 December 2016, the interests of the Directors in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) (the “Associated
Corporations”) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) were as follows:
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Mr. Chau Cheok Wa  [El2ZE 5% 4 - - 4,345/489,489'" 2,192,307,692  6,537,797,181 108.80%
Ms. Yeung So Mui  H iRt - 4,345,489,489 - 2,192,307,692  6,537,797,181 108.80%

Notes:

1. This represents interests held by Mr. Chau Cheok Wa through Fame Select Limited
(“Fame Select”), which holds 4,345,489,489 shares and 2,192,307,692 shares
of derivative interests of the Company. Mr. Chau Cheok Wa has 50% interests in
Fame Select, he is therefore deemed to be interested in 4,345,489,489 shares and
2,192,307,692 shares of derivative interests of the Company.

2. This represents interests held by Mr. Cheng Ting Kong through Fame Select, which
holds 4,345,489,489 shares and 2,192,307,692 shares of derivative interests of
the Company. Mr. Cheng Ting Kong has 50% interests in Fame Select. Ms. Yeung
So Mui is the spouse of Mr. Cheng Ting Kong and she is therefore deemed to be
interest in 4,345,489,489 shares and 2,192,307,692 shares of derivative interests
of the Company.

The percentage has been adjusted based on the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at 31 December 2016 (i.e. 6,009,258,900 shares).
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the
Directors had any other interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
Associated Corporations which had been entered in the register kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

Save as disclosed in note 37 to the financial statements headed
“Related Party Transactions”, no other contracts of significance to
which the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

During the year under review and up to the date of this annual
report, none of the Directors are considered to have interests in a
business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, as defined in the Listing
Rules.

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company
or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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As at 31 December 2016, the interests of those persons (other
than the Directors) in the shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of

R2016912 831 H AR A% (71 B iR 1E
BELEEENEIBEARBBAFEEZE
e R 2 ZEAT (BEERIN W

the SFO were as follows:

Capacity in which

Name shares were held
£1B RABEERGZ5 %
Fame Select’ Beneficial owner
£33 EREEA

Magicmount Holdings Beneficial owner

T
Number of Percentage
underlying of aggregate
shares held interest to
under equity total number of
derivatives shares in issue*
Number of ERATETL R
shares BEEHEE HERITRA
RHEE i = BB
4,345,489,489 (L) 2,192,307,692(L) 108.80%
337,719,868 (L) - 5.62%

Limited (“Magicmount”)? Bz #HE A
BEZERBRAF

([E&])?
L: Long position ¥ &

Notes:

1. Fame Select owned as to 50% by Mr. Chau Cheok Wa and 50% by Mr. Cheng
Ting Kong. As such, Mr. Chau Cheok Wa and Mr. Cheng Ting Kong were deemed
to be interested in 4,345,489,489 shares and 2,192,307,692 shares of derivative

interests of the Company held by Fame Select.

2. Magicmount was wholly owned by Mr. Kwan Tat Ming. As such, Mr. Kwan Tat Ming
was deemed to be interested in 337,719,868 shares held by Magicmount.

* The percentage has been adjusted based on the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at 31 December 2016 (i.e. 6,009,258,900 shares).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, the Company
had not been notified of any interests and short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company which had been
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the
SFO.
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Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, there was sufficiency of
public float of the Company’s securities as required under the Listing
Rules up to the date of this report.

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws in the Cayman Islands.

On 31 January 2007,
employees of the Group towards its growth and success, a share

in recognition of the contributions made by

option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was adopted by the
shareholder’s written resolution of the Company. On 2 June 2016,
a resolution has been passed in the 2016 annual general meeting
of the Company to terminate the Share Option Scheme and adopt
a new share option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”).
Following the termination of the Share Option Scheme, no further
options will be granted under such scheme, but in all other respects
the provisions of the Share Option Scheme will remain in full force
and effect and options granted prior to such termination will continue
to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the rules of the Share
Option Scheme.

The Listing Committee of Stock Exchange has granted the listing
of, and permission to deal in the shares of the Company which
may fall to be issued pursuant to the exercise of the options which
granted and/or may be granted under the Share Option Scheme,
subsequently and/or the New Share Option Scheme.

As at 31 December 2016, a total of 114,346,079 share options
granted under the Share Option Scheme were outstanding.

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Share Option
Scheme and the New Share Option Scheme.

Recognise and acknowledge the contributions that the grantees
had made or may make to the Group.
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Eligible participants include: AEARSHEERRE:

(a) any director, employee, consultant, professional, customer, (@ ANEE KTEEFERE DA
supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the ZARMBAR cANESE -EE -
Group or a company in which the Group holds an interest or R -ZXAE BEF f#ftER K
a subsidiary of such company (“Affiliate”); BB mm A RER ([5E

Al

(b) the trustee of any trust the beneficiary of which or an b) EREFEZFTEAZZ @ AREA 24
discretionary trust the discretionary objects of which include S22 EESR  BRAEENHE
any director, employee, consultant, professional, customer, AZERES -EE BB -FEA
supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the BB fEn RE BH K
Group or an Affiliate; or AN EEE B A 5

(c) a company beneficially owned by any director, employee, () AEESHBBAZANES EE -
consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner, B -EEABE BFE -fpE F‘? . 1J€
adviser of or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate. i% SR @)\&7% 9% P S

FMEREAEZA

Determined by the Board and shall not be less than the higher HEEEEET BETMEERUTZES

of: &

(a) the nominal value of the share; (a) Bfn 2 MHEE:

(b) the closing price of (1) one share on the Stock Exchange at b) REEAB(BAAREXH)RMHEE
the offer date, which must be a trading day; and Rz BRKmE: &

(c) the average closing price of the share on the Stock (c) BEEZE AR A% B RO
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding R FHRmE -
the offer date.

No further options will be granted. T BRI R

Not exceed 1% of the shares in issue in any 12-month period. BN EMI2E A BEEEITRO 2

19% o



Subject to the discretion by the Board and, in the absence of
which, from the date of acceptance to the earlier of the date on
which such option lapses and 10 years from the date of offer.

Subject to the discretion by the Board.

HK$10.00 payable upon acceptance of the offer.

Not applicable.

The scheme has been terminated on 2 June 2016 but the
provisions of the scheme shall remain in full force and effect
in all other respects. Options complying with the provisions of
the Listing Rules which are granted during the duration of the
scheme and remain unexercised immediately prior to the date
of termination shall continue to be exercisable in accordance
with their terms of grant, notwithstanding the termination of the
scheme.

Recognise and acknowledge the contributions that the grantees
had made or may make to the Group.

Eligible participants include:

(@) full time or part time employees, executives, officers, or

directors (whether executive or non-executive and whether
independent or not) of the Group;
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(b) and any business or joint venture partners, contractors,
agents or representatives, consultants, advisers, suppliers,
producers or licensors, customers, licensees (including any
sub-licensee) or distributors, landlords or tenants (including
any sub-tenants) of the Group.

Determined by the Board and shall not be less than the higher
of:

(@) the nominal value of the share;

(b) the closing price of (1) one share on the Stock Exchange at
the offer date, which must be a trading day; and

(c) the average closing price of the share on the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the offer date.

231,472 shares, being approximately 0.01% of the issued
shares of the Company.
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Not exceed 1% of the shares in issue in any 12-month period.

Subject to the discretion by the Board and, in the absence of
which, from the date of acceptance to the earlier of the date on
which such option lapses and 10 years from the date of offer.

Subject to the discretion by the Board.

HK$1.00 payable upon acceptance of the offer.

Not applicable.

The scheme will be valid and effective until 2 June 2026, after
which no further options will be granted but the provisions of the
scheme shall remain in full force and effect in all other respects.
Options complying with the provisions of the Listing Rules which
are granted during the duration of the scheme and remain
unexercised immediately prior to 2 June 2026 shall continue
to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of grant,
notwithstanding the expiry of the scheme.
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Movements of the share options, which were granted under
the Share Option Scheme, during the year ended 31 December
2016 are listed below in accordance with rule 17.07 of the
Listing Rules:

During the year
£
Lapsed/
Category Date of grant As at Exercised cancelled
g3 RiAH 1.1.2016 B BAN/BiH

Continuous Contract Employees 15.06.2007 515,818 -
KERDES

10.10.2007 384,318 -

12.12.2013 400,000 -
Consultants 15,05.2007 5,004,188 -
B

13.02.2008 3,076,924 -

12.12.2013 89,500,000 -

98,861,243 -

Notes:

1. The exercise price of the share options has been adjusted in case of right or
bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

2. When the share options are lapsed or cancelled, the amount previously
recognised in capital reserve will be transferred to accumulated losses.

No share option has been granted under the New Share Option
Scheme during the year ended 31 December 2016.

HE2016F12A31H IEFE RN RIER
fEiEsTER 2 R EEFH T (TR
R BIE7.0718E 5))

Exercise Exercise
Adjustment As at } price period
BE 31122016 k& bt
HKS
i
80,672 596,485 4134 15.11.2007 -
14,06.2017
60,107 444,425 6.728  10.04.2008 -
09.10.2017
62,559 462,559 0344 13.12.2013-
12.12.2023
782,645 5,786,833 4134 15.11.2007 -
14,06.2017
481,225 3,558,149 3.822  13.08.2008 -
13.02.2018
13,997,628 103,497,628 0344 13.12.2013-
12.12.2023

15,464,836 114,346,079
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The pension schemes of the Group are primarily in form of
contributions to the PRC statutory public welfare fund and Hong
Kong's Mandatory Provident Fund, respectively.

During the year, the Company did not have any connected
transactions which were subject to requirements of the Listing Rules.
Other transactions which exempted from the requirements of the
Listing Rule are also disclosed in note 37 to the financial statements
as related party transactions.

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole and any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

Save as disclosed in above, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries had purchased, sold, or redeemed any of the
Company'’s listed securities during the year.

Business review is set out on pages 13 to 15 under Management
Discussion and Analysis of this Annual Report.

At no time during the financial year and up to the date of this report,
there was or is, any permitted indemnity provision being in force for
the benefit of any of the directors of the Company or an associate.

For the details of events after the reporting period, please refer to
note 41 to the financial statements.
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The consolidated financial statements for the year have been audited
by Andes Glacier CPA Limited.

A resolution will be submitted to the Annual General Meeting to re-
appoint Andes Glacier CPA Limited, as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Chau Cheok Wa
Chairman

24 March 2017
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The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report, as
amended from time to time (the “Code”), as stated in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules. As far as the Code is concerned, the Company
complies with all aspects of the Code during the year ended 31
December 2016 save as disclosed below.

Under Code provision E.1.2 of the Code, the chairman of the Board
should attend the general meetings of the Company and invite the
chairman of the committees to attend. Also, under code provision
A.6.7. of the Code, independent non-executive directors should
attend general meeting of the Company and develop balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders. However, due to
other business commitment, Mr. Chau Cheok Wa (“Mr. Chau”),
the chairman of the Board, Mr. Lo Wai Tung John, the chairman of
remuneration committee and an independent non-executive director
and Mr. Tou Kin Chuen (“Mr. Tou”), the chairman of audit committee
and an independent non-executive director did not attend the
annual general meeting held on 2 June 2016. Also, Mr. Chau, Dr.
Wu Kam Fun Roderick, the Chairman of nomination committee and
independent non-executive Director and Mr. Tou did not attend the
extra-ordinary general meeting held on 14 November 2016.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, the Company was not aware of any
noncompliance with the required standard as set out in the Model
Code regarding securities transactions by the Directors throughout
the year ended 31 December 2016.
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The Board currently comprises eight Directors, of whom five are
executive Directors, and three are independent non-executive
Directors. The Board has in its composition a balance of skills and
experience necessary for decision making and fulfilling its business
needs. The participation of non-executive Directors in the Board
brings independent judgement on issues relating to the Group’s
strategy, performance, conflicts of interest and management process
to ensure that the interests of all shareholders of the Company have
been duly considered.

The Board considers that all of the independent non-executive
Directors are independent and has received from each of them the
annual confirmation of independence required by the Listing Rules.

Details of the biographies of the Directors are given under the
section “Biographical Details of Directors” of this annual report.
Except for Ms. Yeung So Mui is the sister of Ms. Yeung So Lai and is
the sister-in-law of Ms. Cheng Mei Ching, members of the Board is
unrelated to each other.

The Board is responsible for the approval and monitoring of the
Group’s overall strategies and policies; approval of business plans;
effectiveness of internal control and risk management systems
and oversight of management. It is also responsible for promoting
the success of the Company and its businesses by directing and
supervising the Company’s affairs.

The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies with particular
attention paid to the growth and financial performance of the Group.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to
executive Directors and senior management of every business
segment, while reserving certain key matters for its approval.
Decisions of the Board are communicated to the management
through executive Directors who have attended Board meetings.
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The Company had arranged for appropriate liability insurance for the
directors and officers of the Group for indemnifying their liabilities
arising from corporate activities.

Directors ==
Executive Directors: BITES:
Mr. Chau Cheok Wa FElEELE
Ms. Yeung So Mui BEEZT
Ms. Cheng Mei Ching B+
Ms. Yeung So Lai BEREXT
Mr. Lo Kai Bang* &2 R B 5 A
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BV} HTES:
Mr. Tou Kin Chuen MEFEE
Dr. Wu Kam Fun Roderick [ e
Mr. Lo Wai Tung John EERTE

*appointed on 9 March 2017

Regular Board meetings are attended to by a majority of
the directors in person or through other electronic means of
communication. Besides the regular Board meetings, special
Board meetings are convened from time to time for the Board to
discuss major matters that require the Board’s timely attention. As
some of the special Board meetings are concerned with the day-
to-day management of the Company which often requires prompt
decisions, usually only the executive directors attend. During
2016, apart from holding Board meetings, the Board also passed
resolutions in writing to approve certain matters.

The Directors were responsible for overseeing the preparation of
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016.
The Directors’ responsibilities in the preparation of the financial
statements and the auditors’ responsibility are set out in the
Independent Auditors’ Report.
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The Board is responsible for effectiveness of the Group’s the
risk management and internal control systems. The systems are
implemented to minimise the risk to which the Group is exposed
and is used as a management tool for the day-to-day operation of
business. The system can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. Procedures have
been designed for safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or
disposition, ensuring the maintenance of proper accounting records
for the provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for
publication, and ensuring compliance of applicable laws, rules and
regulation.

The Group has engaged external professional consultant to
conduct risk management and internal audit of the Group. It
performs risk-based audits to review the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems so as
to provide assurance that key business and operation risks are
identified and managed. The works carried out reports to the Board
with its findings and makes recommendations. The Group has
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the implemented system
and procedures,

including areas covering financial, operational,

compliance and risk management function.

Mr. Chau Cheok Wa is the chairman of the Company. The
Chairman’s responsibility is to oversee the functioning of the Board
and the strategies and policies of the Group. Ms. Yeung So Lai is the
chief executive officer of the Company. The chief executive officer’s
responsibility is to monitor the daily operation and management of
the Company.
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Every newly appointed Director will be given an induction training so
as to ensure that he has appropriate understanding of the Group’s
business and of his/her duties and responsibilities under the Listing
Rules and the relevant statutory and regulatory requirements.

The Company also provides regular updates on the business
development of the Group. The Directors are regularly briefed on the
latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
statutory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of good
corporate governance practices. In addition, the Company has been
encouraging the Directors to enroll in professional development
courses and seminars relating to the Listing Rules, Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and corporate governance practices
organized by professional bodies or chambers in Hong Kong. All
directors are requested to provide the Company with their respective
training records pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code.

All Directors have participated in appropriate continuous professional
development and refresh their knowledge and skills during the year.
Such professional development was completed either by way of
attending briefings, conference, forum, courses and seminars and
self-reading which are relevant to the business or directors duties.

The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Luk Chi Keung, a
member of HKICPA. The company secretary assists the Board by
ensuring good information flow within the Board and that Board
policy and procedures are followed. Mr. Luk has taken not less than
15 hours of relevant professional training in 2016.
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The remuneration committee is responsible for ensuring that the
Company has formal and transparent procedures for developing
and overseeing its policies on the remuneration of the Directors and
senior management. The committee’s authorities and duties are set
out in written terms of reference.

1 remuneration committee meeting was held during the year ended
31 December 2016. Members of the remuneration committee and

the attendance of each member are set out below:

Committee members
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Attend/Held

ZEERE HE BT
Mr. Lo Wai Tung John (Chairman) ERERLE (FE) 1/1
Mr. Tou Kin Chuen T A 1/1
Dr. Wu Kam Fun Roderick AR BIE 1/1
The terms of reference of the remuneration committee are posted on ¥ M ZEZ E @ B E S B N A D 7 B uf & &
the Company’s website. The principal functions include: FEBERIE:

() to make recommendations on the Company’s policies and
structure for all the remuneration of Directors;

(i) to propose the specific remuneration packages of the executive
Directors, and to make recommendations on the remuneration of
the non-executive Directors for the Board’s approval;

(i) to review and propose performance-based remuneration
for executive Directors by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time; and

(iv) to administer and make determinations with regard to the
Company’s share option scheme.
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The nomination committee is responsible to make recommendation

to the Board on the appointment of Directors and the management

of the Board’s succession. The committee’s authorities and duties

are set out in written terms of reference.

1 nomination committee meeting was held during the year ended

REZESAENZTEENEFTSHLEE
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31 December 2016. Members of the nomination committee and the 171X €3 ZEENERELEEHX
attendance of each member are set out below: EHEHT

Committee members Attend/Held
EEENE HiE BT
Dr. Wu Kam Fun Roderick (Chairman) tRER B L (£ &) 11
Mr. Tou Kin Chuen MEFLE 1/1
Mr. Lo Wai Tung John EERLE 1/1
The terms of reference of the nomination committee are posted on EEZZ 8 @ BEHE RN AR A F149u5 5 & -

the Company’s website. The principal functions include:

(i)

(ii

(ii)

(iv)

to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis and
make recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes;

to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships;

to assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors; and

to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors in particular the chairman and
the chief executive officer.
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2 audit committee meetings were held during the year ended 31
December 2016. Attendance of the Members are set out below:

Committee members

FEi% éé@%%&zomimﬂsmtirﬁ
fToREeH - REHLFEEZREEFNWT

Attend/Held

ZEEKE HE BT
Mr. Tou Kin Chuen (Chairman) MeEELE (E) 2/2
Dr. Wu Kam Fun Roderick iR BN L 2/2
Mr. Lo Wai Tung John EEREAE 2/2

The terms of reference of the audit committee are posted on the
Company’s website. The principal functions include:

() to make recommendations with respect to the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the Company’s external auditor,
and to evaluate their independence, objectivity and effectiveness
of the audit process;

(i) to review and monitor the interim and annual financial
statements, reports and accounts of the Company, and to review
significant and judgemental financial reporting issues contained
therein;

(iii) to review the Company’s financial controls, internal controls and
risk management systems; and

to discuss with the management the system of internal controls,
and to ensure that the management has discharged its duties
and responsibilities in implementing an effective internal control
system.

The Group’s 2016 interim and annual reports have been reviewed
by the audit committee, which was of the opinion that such reports
were prepared in accordance with the applicable accounting
standards and requirements. For the 2016 annual report, the
audit committee met with the external auditor to discuss auditing,
internal control, statutory compliance and financial reporting matters
before recommending it to the Board for approval. The committee
also monitored the Company’s progress in implementing the code
provisions on the Code as required under the Listing Rules.
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, the fees paid/payable to
auditor in respect of audit services and non-audit services provided
by the auditor to the Group were as follows:

Nature of services

REME
Audit ZE

— Current year —ARFEE
Others Hity

The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Group also recognises the importance of
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information which
enables shareholders and investors to make a properly informed
investment decision.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Enquiries from investors are dealt
with in an informative and timely manner. Investors may write directly
to the Company at its principal place of business in Hong Kong for
any inquiries.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at www.sun1383.com, where extensive information and

updates on the Company’s business developments and operations,
financial information, corporate governance practices and other
information are available for public access.

The Board confirmed that, during the year, there were no significant
changes made to the Company’s Articles of Association affecting its
operations and reporting practices.
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Under the Company’s Articles of Association, the Board, on the
requisition of shareholders of the Company holding not less than
10% of the paid-up capital of the Company by sending a written
notice to the Board or the Company Secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong, shall convene an extra-
ordinary general meeting to address specific issues of the Company
within 21 days from the date of deposit of written notice. The same
requirement and procedure also applies to any proposal to be tabled
at shareholders’ meetings for adoption.

Specific enquiries by shareholders requiring the Board’s attention
can be sent in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

In addition, the Company maintains contact with its shareholders
through annual general meetings or other general meetings, and
encourages shareholders to attend those meetings.

Notice of general meeting is sent by mail to the registered
shareholders of the Company. Agenda and resolutions are set out
in the notice of general meeting. A proxy form for use at a general
meeting is enclosed with the notice. Shareholders who do not intend
or are unable to be present at the meeting should fill out the form
and return the same to the share registrar and transfer office of the
Company, so as to appoint a representative, another shareholder or
the chairman of the meeting as their proxy.

REARBAZERAMR ERAKATIRN
ARBBEBEA+DZ —HARRARRRE 7
BBRANEBTIELER MU CEFTERAA
WEBHEBMER BXEZTSARBRRS
ARE UEEARBFESEH: HRAGR
REZEMBAE2IAARNET LR ER
RFIVERNRZRRAG UERA 2 [
B e

BREXEZGETZHANER AIBER
BRETEEENB I ESTEA A WE-

AN ARAREBERRBFAG REMARA
THREHE TEBEREEZERG -

BERAEBEBUNBESATERARAER
BR-FRELERINXBERARNGAS -FERS
EMRRAGRRZERK - TREFEHR
REHEAGZBREELZRBALRXOARR T
ZERhBPELR WEE—E2HKKR -5—%
BRIAGEFE/SEREK



Properties development and properties leasing and management
are the company’s largest business and are principally in the PRC.
The Group has one completed project and two projects under
the development in segment of property development and held a
shopping centre in Shenzhen. The Group wishes to further diversify
its business and has moved into two other business areas: hotel and
integrated resort management and consultancy service and travel
agency service.

Stakeholders play a critical role in every company. It is vital that
we engage in effective communication with all stakeholders and
strive to deliver relevant information to stakeholders through a
variety of channels. The Company’s stakeholders can essentially
be divided into customers, suppliers, employees and investors. We
have instituted a number of different channels that allow us to keep
in close contact with these stakeholders, who can communicate
with us at any time by phone or email. The company also has
a website on which details of business are posted, as well as
information on the company’s structure, allowing stakeholders to
get an initial overview of the Company. We also prepare reports for
the whole financial year and interim reports that enable investors
and stakeholders to gain a comprehensive understanding of the
company’s financial situation. We also hold meetings with suppliers
and investors in response to a variety of situations.

Protecting the environment, reducing pollution, effectively utilizing

resources, increasing awareness of environmental issues, and
promoting sustainable economic and social development are all
key aspects of the Chinese government’s environmental protection
efforts. The Group is subject to a number of laws and regulations
in China concerning overall environmental protection, impact to
the environment, noise pollution and environmental protection for
development projects. The Group place high emphasis on complying
with relevant environmental laws and regulations and require our own
staff and construction contractors to comply with the relevant PRC
laws and regulations. The Group believe, in all material respects, has
compliance with applicable environmental laws and regulations in

China.
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The Group may produce certain emissions and disposal of waste
materials during the construction process but believe that the
increase of the efficiency and effectiveness of our construction
process would significantly reduce the raw materials waste and use
of energy.

The Group has implemented internal environmental protection
policies to minimize the impact of business activities on the
environment, and support environmental-protection initiatives. The
Group actively implemented measures to reduce carbon emission
and water usage in our business operations, such as minimize the
use of the use of paper by encouraging double side printing and
paper recycling, and promote paperless environment by encouraging
the use of soft and electronic copy for the document instead of hard

copy.

The Group continues to review the environmental impact of their
operations and make use of best practices across their function
and to develop monitoring of resources consumption data and
implementing better performance strategies as to enhance
the contributions to environmental sustainability through good
environmental practices.

Our employees are vital assets that have a huge influence on
the quality of the Company’s products and services. The Group
establish and maintain fair and comprehensive employment policies
and practice to ensure the compliance with all relevant ethical and
regulatory standards and provide equal opportunity and career
development to all our employees.

The Group strictly complied with the laws, regulations and policies
regarding the social security in the PRC and Hong Hong’s Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. The Group paid social
insurance, housing fund and mandatory provident fund in a timely
manner for all the staff.
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The Group provides a safe and healthy workplace for all employees
including construction sites to complying with all applicable health
and safety laws and regulations. The safety guides are placed in
observable areas and our staff, who work for construction plant
and equipment are required to be well trained for how to use the
equipment or plant safely.

The Group places strong emphasis on staff development. Structured
training programs are organized for new staff to familiarize with the
Group’s culture and the industry, and regular training are provided
to update knowledge of our staff from time to time. The Group also
encourages the employees to identify their own personal objectives
for development, allowing them to grow together with the Group.

The Group’s recruitment management system measures clearly
on the staff’'s requirement. Review and verification of applicant’s
identity information is required during the recruitment process.
Application is also required to provide document proofs of academic
qualifications and working experience for verifications, application
who is suspected to have false academic qualifications and working
experience will not be employed. The Group provides its staff with a
safe, health, comfortable working environment with labor protection,
reasonable remuneration and various welfare. The Group enters
employment contract with each of its employees in accordance with
relevant laws and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong.

The Group tends to maintain long term relationship with its suppliers
for ensuring stable supply of materials for construction. We also
require our suppliers to improving their sustainability performance
and acting responsibly to adhere to our environmental protection
policies.

The Group aims to achieve the highest possible standard with the
products and services provided. The Group pays a highly attention
to the quality and has put quality as its first priority to ensure
customer satisfaction in terms of our products and services.
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The Group has implemented internal policies and guidelines
to comply with applicable laws in PRC on anti-bribery and
anticorruption. These measures are subject to regular review and
update to ensure their effectiveness to strengthen the internal
controls and compliance regime of the Group.

The Company encourages employees to actively participate in
community and group activities. The Group has organized a number
of tree-planting activities to allow management and employees to
plant trees and protect the environment. The company will also
participate in even more activities to give back to the community
in the coming year and will consider from time to time to donate to
charitable organizations when the Group recorded profit after tax and
have sufficient cash flow.
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Item Relevant topic in report
A The Environment Our Environment
A1 Emission Emission
A2 Use of Resources Use of Resources
A3 The Environmental and Environmental and Nature
Natural Resources Resources
B. Social Our Employees
B1 Employment Employment
B2 Health and Safety Health and Safety
B3 Development and Training Development and Training
B4 Labor Standards Labor Standards
B5 Supply Chain Management  Supply Chain Management
B6 Product Responsibility Product Responsibility
B7 Anti-Corruption Anti-Corruption
B8 Community Investment Community Participation
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Andes Glacier CPA Limited

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

T ST AT A TR A

Ji.;,

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sun
Century Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 57 to 160
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting polices.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSASs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the "Code"),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Unit 1, 20/Floor, No. 50 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong
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We draw attention to note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements which indicates that the Group has sustained losses
for 4 consecutive years and incurred a loss of approximately
RMB490,508,000 for the year ended 31 December 2016 and has
net current liabilities of approximately RMB91,559,000 at the end
of the reporting period. As stated in note 3, these conditions, along
with other matters as set forth in note 3, indicate that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the
matter described in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern
section, we have determined the matters described below to be the
key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Refer to note 7 (Turnover) to the financial statements for the related
disclosures.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, income from sales of
properties amounting to RMB1,048 million (2015: RMB668 million)
was recognised by the Group. Management judgement is required to
determine the appropriate point to recognise sales of properties.

Our audit procedures in relation to the recognition of sales of
properties included:

e FEvaluate the controls related to the management’s process for
recognition of sales of properties.

e Inspecting, on a sample basis, the teams set out in the sales and
purchase agreements to understand the criteria for the delivery of
properties to the purchasers.

e Perform substantive testing to test the accuracy of recognition of
income.
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Refer to note 20 (Trade and other receivables) to the financial
statements for the related disclosures.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had net trade and other
receivables of RMB386 million (2015: RMB637 million). Provision for
impairment of trade and other receivables amounting to RMB316
million was made in current year (2015: nil). Management judgement is
required in determining the adequacy of the provision, considering the
expected recoverability of the year end receivables.

Our audit procedures in relation to the impairment of trade and other
receivables included:

e Understood and validated the credit control procedures
performed by management, including its procedures on periodic
review on aged receivables and assessment on recoverability of
these receivables; and

e Tested subsequent settlement of receivables balances. Where
settlement had not been received subsequent to the year end for
those unprovided aged receivable, we obtained management’s
assessment on the recoverability of these debts and corroborated
explanations with historical settlement pattern and underlying
correspondence with the relevant customers.

Refer to note 18 (Investment properties) to the financial statements for
the related disclosures.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group held investment properties
located in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) at a carrying
amount of RMB1,732 million (2015: RMB1,692 million). Increase in fair
value of investment properties of RMB40 million (2015: RMB95 million)
was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for the year then ended. Independent
external valuations were obtained in order to support management’s
estimates. The valuations are dependent on certain key assumptions
that require significant management judgement, including market
selling price, market rental and plot ratio of land use rights.
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Our audit procedures in relation to the valuation of investment
properties included:

e Evaluate the independent external valuer’s competence,
capabilities and objectivity

e Examine the valuation reports and evaluate the methodologies
and assumptions used

e Discuss with the independent external valuer for the valuation
approach and consider whether the assumptions were consistent
with the market evidence.

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and for no other
purpose. We do no assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We were responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Hsu Yuk King.

Andes Glacier CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hsu Yuk King

Practising Certificate Number: P03548

Hong Kong, 24 March 2017

s EHAH EEERNERBAXBKIIN
MHEMNEDBEENEZXER L
EMBHRRERBER -AMARKEE &
BRETEEEZ RADAHRMANE
RERAEZHEE-

BPIH (AP BRE) BERNR S & E M EE
EXERAER (BRAMEERTERENR
HRIEHIE AR ) AR R R ABA -

BATAEEEEARK—DHBHR KF-R
MEETERB L ENARERESR I5
EEARERHRMBYEELRFANAE
BER (WER) HEREREREEZZES
A o

REEEBRENBBENEER  RMRSER
ERRHERANBAGAMBHREAMNE RE
ENER ALBEREREZSE RAEX
BEBEPHBELEFTE BRIPERIER
ZIERARABEEZER L (EERIBIBERT)
HRENFERREIERKHEE MBEMN
TR AKNGE KRS FTEIEER
IR R & A IR

WAEABIZEBMBENEZNEB ARG
EiRe

BEGHMITERLF
HEDE AT

HBER

HE RIS - PO3548

EFE 0 2017FE3H24H



Turnover

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other net expenses

Selling and distribution expenses

General and administrative expenses

Other operating expenses

Increase in fair value of investment properties

(Impairment loss)/Reversal of impairment loss
on inventories

(Loss)/Profit from operations

Finance costs

Change in fair value of financial derivatives

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
goodwill

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Loss before tax

Income tax expense

Loss for the year

Loss for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Loss per share
Basic and diluted

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z=2016%12 4318 IEFE

EER
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Notes

P £

10

&) 26(e)

29
33

11

12

16

2015
RMB’000
ARBT T

726,088

(412,226)

313,862

(66,806)
(50,762)
(74,069)
(21,106)
95,000

13,367

209,486

(296,431)

(86,945)
(158,987)
(245,932)
(245,007)

(925)
(245,932)
RMB cents
AREE S

Restated
g7t

(16.13)



For the year ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12A31 B IEF[E

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive expense
Item that may be reclassified subsequently
to profit and loss:
Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Total comprehensive loss for the year
attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Notes
B 5

FRER

Htt2HEMAX
HZEA[GEEF 7R E 1Bt
HIEH -
BEBIEBMELLZ
ERER

AEEREBRAE

UTMATEBERFERZE
B :
ZN/NCIE7 2N
FEFE IR

2015
RMB’000
ARBTT

(245,932)

(245,932)

(245,007)
(925)

(245,932)



Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Pledged deposits

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables, and accruals

Receipt in advance
Rental and other deposits
Bank and other borrowings —
due within one year
Derivative component of convertible bonds
Current tax liabilities

Net current liabilities

Total assets less current liabilities

Notes
B 2
kRBEE
Y3 BB K& 17
LEME 18
FEEFRIAE E 27
REBEE
FE 19
JrE Uk BR 3k N EL At e U R 20
R F K 21
IRITHEBNIR® 22
REaE

FERTRRAR - H At B R e TR 2

2R 23
TE U BR 3K 24
HERHMES 25
RITREMBEE—

R — A EI Hf 26
AmBRESNITERSS 26(e)
BNEARR I & (&

REBEEFE

EERERRBRE

At 31 December 2016 742016412 A31H

2015
RMB’000
ARBT T

2,843
1,692,000
217

1,695,060

1,324,477
636,977
2,666
27,768

1,991,888

452,562
623,559
10,200
1,658,261

144,532

2,789,114

(797,226)

897,834



At 31 December 2016 742016512 A31H

Non-current liabilities ERBERE

Bank and other borrowings — HITREAMEE—
due after one year R — 1% 5 H

Deferred tax liabilities BEHRIBEE

NET ASSETS EEFRE

Capital and reserves BEXRFEE

Share capital [N

Reserves L]

Equity attributable to owners of the AAREEAEGESR
Company

Non-controlling interests B £

TOTAL EQUITY ERAE

Approved by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2017.

Chau Cheok Wa
e
Director

EF

Notes
B 5

26
27

28
31

39

Lo Kai Bong

E R F
Director

EF

2015

RMB’000
ARBTT

480,000
341,393

821,393

76,441

123,644
(41,986)

81,658
(5,217)

76,441
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 & Z=2016%12 4318 IEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

AADREARE
Non-

Share Share Merger  Statutory Capital ~ Exchange Accumulated controlling Total

capital  premium reserve reserve reserve  reserves losses Total interests equity

R&  RGEE ANER  iERE  EREE  JERE  EiEE B FBMEE  BRET

Notes ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'0O0  RMB'0O0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
W& ARETn ARETn ARETR ARETR ARETR ARBTn ARETn ARETn ARETn ARETR

At 1 January 2015 R201551518 120,945 986,863 2001 49,373 2,83 - (888307 316,924 (429 311632
Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ AEE2EBELE - - - - - - (45007 (245,007) 925 (245932)
Share options cancelled B HHARE ] = = = = @) = 9 = = =
Issue of shares under share option SEELCHE B
scheme 28(a)/28(b) 2,699 1,179 - - (3,137) - - 10,741 - 10,741
Change in equity for the year FERERED 2609 11,179 - - (3,229) - (44915 (254,266) (©25)  (235,191)
At 31 December 2015 and R2015512A31B &
1 January 2016 201651318 123644 998,042 2001 49,373 19,504 - (1,183,229 81,658 (5,217) 76,441
Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ AFE2ABBLE
Disposal of subsidiaries LENBAA 3
Issue of shares under rights isse HRE T2 R 28(c)
Change in equity for the year FERERED
At 31 December 2016 R2016%12A31A
Note: Bt 5

()  During the year ended 31 December 2015, 1,000,000 share options granted on
12 December 2012 were cancelled. Accordingly, the fair value on grant date of the
share options so cancelled of approximately RMB92,000 was transferred from the
capital reserve to accumulated losses.
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REH B YRR ELHARE2,0007TE B & AR
BEBEE R EE



For the year ended 31 December 2016 & £2016F12A31 B IEF[E

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Finance costs
Depreciation
Impairment loss on inventories
Change in fair value of financial derivatives
Impairment loss on trade and other
receivables
Reversal of impairment on trade and other
receivables
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Increase in fair value of investment
properties
Net realised and unrealised loss on trading
securities
Reversal of impairments loss on inventories
Impairment loss recognised in respect of
goodwill

Operating profit before working capital
changes

Decrease in inventories

Increase in trade and other receivables

Decrease in pledged deposits

Decrease in trade and other payables, and
accruals

(Decrease)/Increase in receipt in advance

(Decrease)/Increase in rental and
other deposits

Cash generated from operations

Income tax paid

Net cash generated from operating
activities

Notes
B 5
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2015
RMB’000
AREFIT
(86,945)
(4,368)

296,431
2,290

117

(95,000)

212
(13,367)

99,370
397,256
(35,399)
122,379

(17,295)
398,439

634

965,388

(82,904)

882,484



INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and

equipment

Net cash inflow arising from acquisition of a
subsidiary

Net cash inflow arising from disposal of
subsidiaries

Proceeds from disposal of trading securities

Interest received

Net cash generated from
investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Drawdown of bank and other borrowings
Repayment of bank and other borrowings
Proceeds from issue of shares

Interest paid

Net cash used in financing activities

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Effect of foreign exchange rate change

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
1 JANUARY

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
31 DECEMBER

ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash

For the year ended 31 December 2016 & 2016512 831 H It FE
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2015

RMB’000
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(817)

216

2,995
4,368

7,262

25,000
(729,276)
10,741
(296,431)
(989,966)

(100,220)

127,988

27,768

27,768



(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 38 FT1g40 ' LAA REITHR)

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability. The address of its registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, George Town, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, the Cayman lIslands. The address of its
principal place of business is 3/F., Club House of Le Paysage
Buji Street, Longgang District, Shenzhen City, Guangdong
Province, the PRC. The Company’s shares are listed on the
Main Board of Stock Exchange. In the opinion of the directors of
the Company (the “Directors”), as at 31 December 2016, Fame
Select Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI”), is the immediate parent and Mr. Chau Cheok Wa
and Mr. Cheng Ting Kong are the ultimate controlling parties of
the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 38 to the
financial statements.

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and
revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) that are relevant to its operations
and effective for its accounting year beginning on 1 January
2016. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”) and
Interpretations (“Int”).

HKFRS 14
Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKFRS 11

Regulatory Deferral Accounts

Disclosure Initiative

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint
Operations

Amendments to HKAS 16 and  Clarification of Acceptable Methods of

HKAS 38 Depreciation and Amortisation
Amendments to HKAS 16 and  Agriculture: Bearer Plants
HKAS 41
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements

Amendments to HKFRS 10
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014

Cycle
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 348 FT1g40 LA A R¥ITHR)

The application of the above new and revised HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group has not early applied the following new or revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers?
HKFRS 16 Leases®

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment: Classification and
Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions?
Amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure Initiative’
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
and HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture*

Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes: Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets
for Unrealised Losses'

" Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January,
2017, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January,
2018, with earlier application permitted.

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January,
2019, with earlier application permitted.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to
be determined.

The Group has already commenced considering the potential
impact of these new HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state
whether these new HKFRSs would have a material impact on its
financial performance and financial position.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 38 FT1g40 ' LAA REITHR)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors
have given careful consideration to the liquidity of the Group
as the Group has sustained losses for 4 consecutive years.
In particular, the Group incurred a loss of approximately
RMB490,508,000 for the year ended 31 December 2016
(2015: RMB245,932,000) and has net current liabilities of
approximately RMB91,559,000 at 31 December 2016 (2015:
RMB797,226,000).

In the opinion of the Directors, the Group is able to operate as a
going concern in the coming year after taking into consideration
the following condition:

Included in current liabilities, receipt in advance as at 31
December 2016 of approximately RMB421,117,000 were
received from the purchasers of Le Paysage and are non-
refundable.

Based on the Group’s cash flow forecast, the Directors are of
the opinion that the Group will be able to have sufficient working
capital to finance its operations and meet its financial obligations
when they fall due in the foreseeable future. Accordingly,
the Directors considered that it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 348 FT1g40 LA A R¥ITHR)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(“Listing Rule”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(“Companies Ordinance”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for investment properties and
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 38 FT1g40 ' LAA REITHR)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope
of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of
HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

e |evel 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 348 FT1g40 LA A R¥ITHR)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain key
assumptions and estimates. It also requires the directors
to exercise their judgements in the process of applying the
accounting policies. The areas involving critical judgements and
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to these
financial statements, are disclosed in note 5 to the financial
statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these financial statements are set out below.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an
investee are sufficient to give it power, including:
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 38 FT1g40 ' LAA REITHR)

e the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

e potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

e rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

e any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 348 FT1g40 LA A R¥ITHR)

Investments in subsidiaries presented in the statement of
financial position included in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements are stated at cost less any identified
impairment loss.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
and any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent
accounting under HKAS 39, when applicable, the cost on
initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint
venture.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 38 FT1g40 ' LAA REITHR)

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be
initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction- by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified
in another HKFRS.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 348 FT1g40 LA A R¥ITHR)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control) and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest
were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), and additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that,
if known, would have affected the amounts recognised at
that date.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
(see the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 38 FT1g40 ' LAA REITHR)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than
its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly
in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill
is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency ("foreign currencies") are recognised
at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are presented in the functional and presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Renminbi (“RMB”)) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Income and expense items are translated at the
average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of foreign currency translation reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 348 FT1g40 LA A R¥ITHR)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a
joint arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest becomes a financial
asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
at rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual
values over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

— Buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land are depreciated over the shorter of the
unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful
lives, being no more than 40 years after the date of
completion.

— Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the
shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their
estimated useful lives, being no more than 20 years.

—  Furniture and fixtures 3-5 years

— Motor vehicles 4 years
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 38 FT1g40 ' LAA REITHR)

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties are land and/or buildings held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. An investment
property is measured initially at its cost including all direct
costs attributable to the property.

After initial recognition, the investment property is stated at
its fair value based on valuation by an external independent
valuer. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
the investment property are recognised in profit or loss for
the period in which they arise.

If a property held for sale becomes investment property, any
difference resulting between the carrying amount and the
fair value of this item at the date of transfer is recognised in
profit or loss.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the property, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 348 FT1g40 LA A R¥ITHR)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

Lease payments (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group all the
risks and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted
for as finance leases. At the commencement of the
lease term, a finance lease is capitalised at the lower of
the fair value of the leased asset and the present value
of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the
inception of the lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included
in the consolidated statement of financial position as
finance lease payable. Lease payments are apportioned
between the finance charge and the reduction of the
outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated to
each period during the lease term so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated over the
lease term or, where it is likely the Group will obtain
ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set out in
note 4(e).
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 38 FT1g40 ' LAA REITHR)

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

Properties for future development/under development
for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs include acquisition costs, prepaid land
lease payments, construction costs, borrowing costs
capitalised and other direct costs attributable to such
properties. Net realisable value is determined by
reference to sale proceeds received after the reporting
period less selling expenses and the anticipated costs
to completion, or by estimates based on prevailing
market condition. On completion, the properties are
reclassified to properties held for sale at the then
carrying amount. Properties for future development/
under development for sale are classified as current
assets unless the construction period of the relevant
property development project is expected to complete
beyond normal operating cycle.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 348 FT1g40 LA A R¥ITHR)

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Costs of properties include
acquisition costs, prepaid land lease payments,
construction costs, borrowing costs capitalised and
other direct costs attributable to such properties. Net
realisable value is determined by reference to sale
proceeds received after the reporting period less selling
expenses, or by estimates based on prevailing market
condition.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 38 FT1g40 ' LAA REITHR)

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets ‘at fair value through profit or
loss’ (“FVTPL”), ‘held-to-maturity’ investments, ‘available-
for-sale’ financial assets and ‘loans and receivables’. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at
FVTPL.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 348 FT1g40 LA A R¥ITHR)

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is either held for trading or it is designated as at
FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
it in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

e the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits
the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 38 FT1g40 ' LAA REITHR)

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is included in the ‘other net income/(expense)’ line
item.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Loans and receivables (including trade and
other receivables, bank and cash balances, and pledged
deposits) are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
investment have been affected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

e breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 348 FT1g40 LA A R¥ITHR)

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

e the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods
(see the accounting policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

s BERABHREHEREXNBE
EIE

s HWRMBRMEMEDZEREE
REERTIS

FLIRE B ANE S R & BB E T
5 OEAREERNSREZREE
MEREERGEGFARRBASREEZE
BMEENVIRBERNXFENRELZ
B EETE-

RIERAEINRNEREEMS
EBRZ EBRZAEENREER
ERFARRESRELFAEEREER
R 85 [ R R IR IRE 2 R 2 5
AE-RREBBRKTERNER
e (R NS HR) -

EHEREENHEBEEEEENS
BB E 2 BREE IR - AR
BRON - HERHE S L BB EREL T
Bl o T AR SRR AR A A AT U = B TR
Bt R M - B YR 2 AT 2 N
ZEBOBOBERA -BERAZ
REEZ N BT R -

RIREHHEK AT RN S REEM
B ERR  MRRERE SR
Lo mABRRDERTE LERERRE
BEBELEZEMHER BIEACERD
MERBEREEER TIAKD  HEZ
BENBERERDE BNERENS
FRB I EEERRE T B -



(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 38 FT1g40 ' LAA REITHR)

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its
entirety, the Group allocates the previous carrying amount
of the financial asset between the part it continues to
recognise, and the part it no longer recognises on the
basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date
of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount
allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the
sum of the consideration received for the part no longer
recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is
allocated between the part that continues to be recognised
and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the
relative fair values of those parts.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 348 FT1g40 LA A R¥ITHR)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Investments are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis where the purchase or sale of an investment
is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the
investment within the timeframe established by the market
concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus
directly attributable transaction costs except in the case of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group’s investments are classified as financial assets at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are either investments classified
as held for trading or designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition. These investments are subsequently measured
at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair
value of these investments are recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents represent cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 38 FT1g40 ' LAA REITHR)

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities
at FVTPL or other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated
as at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 348 FT1g40 LA A R¥ITHR)

A financial liability other than a financial liability held
for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

e the financial liability forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement permits
the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is
included in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item.

Other financial liabilities (including trade and other payables
and accruals, rental and other deposits and bank and other
borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 38 FT1g40 ' LAA REITHR)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis
other than financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL.

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated as
at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

e the amount of the obligation under the contract, as
determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and

e the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with
the revenue recognition policies.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 348 FT1g40 LA A R¥ITHR)

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated
and effective as a hedging instrument, in which case the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the
nature of the hedge relationship.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
treated as separate derivatives when they meet the definition
of a derivative, their risks and characteristics are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts
are not measured at FVTPL.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Revenue from the sale of properties held for sale is
recognised when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyers. The
Group considers that the significant risks and rewards
of ownership are transferred when the properties are
completed and delivered to the buyers. Revenue from
sales of properties excludes business tax and other
sales related taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts. Deposits and instalments received on
properties sold prior to the date of revenue recognition
are included in the statement of financial position under
receipt in advance.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 38 FT1g40 ' LAA REITHR)

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the operating leases. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as
an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income
in the accounting period in which they are earned.
Rental income excludes business tax or other sales
related taxes.

Revenue from property management is recognised in the
accounting period in which the services are rendered.

Hotel and integrated hotel management and consultancy
services income is recognised in the accounting period
in which the services are rendered.

Service income is recognised upon services in respect
of the sales of hotel accommodation and other travel
related products are provided.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised
when the shareholder’s right to receive payment is
established. Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the investment goes
ex-dividend.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 348 FT1g40 LA A R¥ITHR)

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes as required under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. Contributions
to the schemes by the Group and employees are
calculated as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries.
The retirement benefit scheme cost charged to profit or
loss represents contributions payable by the Group to
the funds.

The Group contributes to appropriate local defined
contribution retirement schemes pursuant to the relevant
labour rules and regulations in the PRC. Contributions
to the schemes by the Group are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss as incurred, to the extent that
they are not capitalised as inventories.

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only
when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employment or to provide benefits as a result
of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal plan
which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.
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The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to
certain Directors, employees and consultants.



(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 38 FT1g40 ' LAA REITHR)

Equity-settled share-based payments to Directors and
employees are measured at fair value (excluding the effect
of non market-based vesting conditions) of the equity
instruments at the date of grant. The fair value determined at
the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually
vest and adjusted for the effect of non market-based vesting
conditions, with a corresponding increase in capital reserve.

Equity-settled share-based payments to consultants are
measured at the fair value of the services rendered or if
the fair value of the services rendered cannot be reliably
measured, at the fair value of the equity instruments
granted. The fair value is measured at the date the Group
receives the services and recognised as expense.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in capital reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in capital
reserve will be transferred to accumulated losses.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 348 FT1g40 LA A R¥ITHR)

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined
by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on
that asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average
of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Group that are outstanding during the period, other than
borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a
qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit
or loss because it excludes items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 38 FT1g40 ' LAA REITHR)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 348 FT1g40 LA A R¥ITHR)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60%
on the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from
sales of properties less deductible expenditures including
land costs, borrowing costs, business taxes and all property
development expenditures. LAT is recognised as an income
tax. LAT paid is a deductible expense for PRC corporate
income tax purposes.

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family is

related to the Group if that person:

() has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group.

(B) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

()  The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 38 FT1g40 ' LAA REITHR)

(B) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Cont’d)

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third party.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a
plan the sponsoring employers are also related to
the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (A).

(vii) A person identified in (A)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, providers key management personnel services
to the group or to the group is parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 348 FT1g40 LA A R¥ITHR)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets except investment properties,
deferred tax assets and financial assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of any impairment loss (if any). Where
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset or cash- generating unit in prior
years.

A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 38 FT1g40 ' LAA REITHR)

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and
are reflected in the financial statements. Events after the
reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed
in the notes to the financial statements when material.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 348 FT1g40 LA A R¥ITHR)

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

As explained in note 4(h), the Group’s completed properties
held for sale and properties for future development/under
development for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Based on the Group’s recent experience
and the nature of the subject properties, the Group makes
estimates of the selling prices, the costs of completion
in case for properties for future development and under
development for sale, and the costs to be incurred in selling
the properties based on prevailing market conditions.

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a decrease
in net sales value, the net realisable value will decrease
and this may result in provision for completed properties
held for sale and properties for future development/under
development for sale. Such provision requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is different
from the original estimate, the carrying value and provision
for properties in the periods in which such estimate is
changed will be adjusted accordingly.

In addition, given the volatility of the PRC property market
and the unique nature of individual properties, the actual
outcomes in terms of costs and revenue may be higher or
lower than estimated at the reporting date. Any increase or
decrease in the provision would affect profit or loss in future
years.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 38 FT1g40 ' LAA REITHR)

The Group prepaid land and construction costs for certain
projects located on the lands which the Group has not
obtained title documents of the land use rights. The Group is
in the process of obtaining title documents of these land use
rights. Should the title documents of these land use rights
cannot be obtained subsequently, certain prepaid costs
may not be recoverable. The Group provides for impairment
losses for the unrecoverable costs based on its estimation.
The Group’s estimates may be inaccurate and any change in
the estimates would affect profit or loss in future years.

The Group reviews the recoverability and ageing of loans
and receivables, prepayment and deposits and provides for
impairment losses if the balances are not fully recoverable.
The assessments involve estimation on the recoverability of
these balances. The Group’s estimates and judements may
be inaccurate and any change in estimates would affect
profit or loss in future years.

The Group is subject to income taxes mainly in the PRC.
Significant estimates are required in determining the amount
of the provision for tax and the timing of payment of the
related tax. There are many transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the periods in which such
determination are made.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 348 FT1g40 LA A R¥ITHR)

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. However, the
implementation and settlement of these taxes varies among
various tax jurisdictions in cities of the PRC, and the Group
has not finalised its land appreciation taxes calculation
and payments with any local tax authorities in the PRC.
Accordingly, significant judgment is required in determining
the amount of the land appreciation and its related taxes.
The Group recognised these LAT based on management’s
best estimates according to the understanding of the tax
rules. The final tax outcome could be different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, and these differences
will impact the cost of sales and deferred tax provision in the
periods in which such taxes have been finalised with local
tax authorities.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers
to be probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax losses can
be utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for the changes in fair
value of investment properties and depreciation allowances
in excess of related depreciation in the PRC and any change
in estimates would affect profit or loss in future years.

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured
at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The board of
Directors (the “Board”) has a designated management to
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs
for fair value measurements.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 38 FT1g40 ' LAA REITHR)

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties, the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available,
the Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform
the valuation of the Group’s investment properties. At the
end of each reporting period, the management of the Group
works closely with the qualified external valuers to establish
and determine the appropriate valuation techniques and
inputs for Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements. The
Group will first consider and adopt Level 2 inputs where
inputs can be derived from observable quoted prices in the
active market. When Level 2 inputs are not available, the
Group will adopt valuation techniques that include Level 3
inputs. Where there is a material change in the fair value of
the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be reported
to the Board. Information about the valuation techniques
and inputs used in determining the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties are disclosed in note 18.

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s financial assets
at FVTPL, the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available,
the management of the Group will assess the valuation of
financial instruments based on quoted bid prices of the
previous trading day in the over-the-counter markets or
quoted market prices provided by brokers at the end of
each reporting period.

The management of the Group will exercise their judgements
based on their experience to establish and determine the
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the valuation
model. Where there is a material change in the fair value of
the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be reported
to the Board. Note 6(c) provides detailed information about
the valuation techniques, inputs and key assumptions used
in the determination of the fair value of the Group'’s financial
assets at FVTPL.
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Details of guarantees provided by the Group are set
out in note 34(a) to the financial statements. Based on
expectations at the reporting date, the Directors consider
that it is more likely than not that such an amount will not
be payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate
is subject to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a
function of the likelihood that the financial receivables held
by the counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit
losses.

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the
Group takes into consideration the estimation of future cash
flows. The amount of the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise.

Financial assets EWMEE

Loans and receivable ER K EWTE
(including bank and cash balances) (BIERTRRS&ER)

Financial liabilities cRAaE

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest
rate risk. The Group's overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's
financial performance.
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All the Group's revenue-generating activities were
transacted in RMB. Exposure to foreign currency risk
is mainly attributable to bank deposits, bank and
other borrowings that are denominated in currencies
other than RMB. Foreign currency risk is measured
by employing sensitivity analysis, taking into account
current and anticipated exposures.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

At 31 December 2016, it is estimated that had the Hong
Kong Dollars exchange rate (versus RMB) increased/
decreased by 5% (2015: 5%), with all other variables
remaining constant, the Group's loss after tax for the
year would have increased/decreased by approximately
RMB3,942,000 (2015: the Group's loss after tax
would have increased/decreased by approximately
RMB54,405,000).

5% (2015: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to the
key management personnel and represents the
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the end
of the reporting period for a 5% (2015: 5%) change in
foreign currency rate. A positive number below indicates
an increase in profit for the year where RMB and HK$
weaken against the relevant foreign currency. Where
RMB and Hong Kong Dollars strengthen against the
relevant foreign currency, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the profit for the year and the
balances below would be negative.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk
as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure
during the year.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 348 FT1g40 LA A R¥ITHR)

At 31 December 2016, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group has a defined credit policy. In addition, the
Group reviews the ageing of its individual debt at the
end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the Directors consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on pledged deposits, bank and cash
balances is limited because the counterparties are
banks with high credit-ratings. The Group has arranged
bank financing for certain purchasers of properties and
provided guarantees to certain former subsidiaries,
its tenant and business associates. Details of these
guarantees are set out in note 34(a) to the financial
statements.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk
in relation to trade and other receivables, with exposure
spread over a number of counterparties and customers.
The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations that all trade receivables as at 31 December
2016 were attributable based in PRC.

Individual subsidiaries within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management based on the Group’s
internal guidelines on liquidity requirement, including
raising loans to cover the expected cash demand, and
obtaining credit lines, subject to approval by the Board.
The Group’s objective is to strike a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use
of banking facility and other borrowings. The Group
financed its operations and investment activities with
internally generated cash flows, balanced with proceeds
from the line of credit obtain from banks. There has
been no default on repayment of interest and/or bank
borrowings as at year end or at any time during the year.
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 38 FT1g40 ' LAA REITHR)

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the reporting date of the Group’s non-
derivative financial liabilities (excluding receipt in
advance), which are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at
the reporting date) and the earliest date the Group can

be required to pay:

Trade and other payables, — FEfT 8RR - £t ER 3
and accruals LERER

Rental and other deposits & R E ik &

Bank and other borrowings 1T REMEE

Total At

Within
1 year or
on demand
1ER
HIREK
RMB'000
ARETT

Trade and other payables, ~ JEfTER - E thfE T3
and accruals LERER 452,562
Rental and other deposits ~ HE R k4 10,200
Bank and other borrowings 17 R E A £ E 1,558,261
Total B 2,021,023

TRETAEEZIFTESHE
B(TEFEBAREF) R KRE A
ZHTANIEE  DHIREELH
AFRBEERE(BEEAGH
MERFFE 2R B H B ¥
AR AR HRE Rz E
AE)ARAEETEREEZ
RPHHFE:

2015
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
BRNRTRRERL

More than More than

1yearbut 2 years but
less than less than More than Carrying
2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount

1ENEE  2FNER
DIOE DISE 56 L BF REE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETR AR%TR ARBTT ARETR
- - - 452,562 452,562
- - - 10,200 10,200
35,000 115,000 330,000 2,038,261 2,038,261
35,000 115,000 330,000 2,501,023 2,501,023

The above table excluded all non-cash settled

contractual liabilities.

EXRTEEMEFREEE LS
WafE-



(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 348 FT1g40 LA A R¥ITHR)

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
interest-bearing assets and liabilities. It is the Group’s
intention to keep its borrowings at floating interest rate
with an aim to reflect market costs of funding. It is this
reason that cost of specific borrowings financing the
Group’s development projects would be capitalised at a
rate reflecting market conditions. The Group’s effect on
changes in interest rate is considered immaterial to the
Group’s profit or loss.

At 31 December 2016, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis point (2015: 100
basis point) in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, would increase/decrease the
Group’s loss after tax for the year by approximately
RMB3,390,000(2015: increase/decrease the Group’s
loss after tax by approximately RMB4,531,000).

A 100 basis points (2015: 100 basis points) increase
or decrease is used for variable-rate balances when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.

REE A E @ EZ R ERET
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 38 FT1g40 ' LAA REITHR)

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of the
financial assets and financial liabilities as reflected in the
consolidated statement of financial position approximate
their respective fair values. The following disclosures of fair
value measurements use a fair value hierarchy which has 3
levels:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on

observable market data (unobservable inputs).

There is no transfer between Level 1, 2 and 3 during both
years.

ESRREAMBHINLERAIIRE R
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(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 348 FT1g40 LA A R¥ITHR)

The principal activities of the Group are property development
and property leasing and management in the PRC, hotel and
integrated resort management and consultancy service, and
travel agency service.

Turnover represents income from sales of properties, rental
income and management fee income, hotel and integrated resort
management and consultancy service income and travel agency
service income recognised during the year, net of business
tax and other sales related taxes and discounts allowed. The

AEENIEXBRETHREENER
B MEHENER BENEAERN
B IR N B AR A R ik OB AR A

EEBANAFREAERNEEDER
A HERAREREREA BIE R
B RN E IR KB AR 75 A B ik 2 R
RIFWA (EHBRERR KA HERR
MIARF) - AFERN EREERRE

amount of each significant category of revenue recognised in

turnover during the year is as follows:

Income from sales of properties
Rental and management fee income

Hotel and integrated resort management

and consultancy service income
Travel agency services income

Advertising income

Interest income

Gain/(Loss) on disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Net exchange loss

Net realised and unrealised loss on
trading securities

Net utilities expenses related to property
leasing business

Reversal of impairment on trade and
other receivables

Others

RHBETEUW

AR R T

2015
RMB’000
ARBT T
SHEMERA 667,510
HeREEBRA 58,032
BIEREREEBRNEE R
B 9 AR 75 LA 546
B 382 X 22 AR 75 M A -
726,088
2015
RMB’000
ARET T
BEERA 373
A B A 4,368
HEME BERZB2HRE
(B#E) (117)
fE 5B 18558 (70,415)
BEEESCERRARERERTE
(212)
MEHREXEBHB L AREBERI N
F R (2,570)
$ [] & U8 AR SR Ko H A 8 WK TR R 1B
Hith 1,767

(66,806)



(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 38 FT1g40 ' LAA REITHR)

The Group has four reportable segments as follows:

(1) Property development — this segment develops and sells
office premises, residential and retail properties. Currently all
the Group’s property development activities are carried out
in the PRC;

(2) Property leasing — this segment leases retail properties to
generate rental and management fee income and to gain
the capital appreciation in the properties’ values in the
long term. Currently the Group’s entire investment property
portfolio is located in the PRC;

(3) Hotel and integrated resort management and consultancy
services — This segment provides hotel and integrated resort
management and consultancy services to generate service
income; and

(4) Travel agency services — This segment provides travel
agency services to generate service income.

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units
that offer different products and services. They are managed
separately because each business segment requires different
marketing strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as those of the Group. Segment profit or loss do not include
finance costs and corporate income and expenses. Segment
assets include all current and non-current assets with the
exception of deferred tax assets and other corporate assets.
Segment liabilities include all current and non-current liabilities
with the exception of current tax liabilities, deferred tax liabilities
and other corporate liabilities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
P End N

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (& 2B FTE5) - A AR TFIR)

9. Segment Information (Cont’d)

9. ZHEH (&)

Information about reportable segment profit or loss, EREREIHER EEREEWN
assets and liabilities ‘g8
Hotel and
integrated
resort
management
and Travel
Property Property  consultancy agency
development leasing services services Total
BERGE
ERNER
NERE  NERE  REMRE RERERE sit
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%Tn AR¥Tn ARETR ARETR ARMTR
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BZ016F12BHBLEE
Revenue from external customers PREPHA 1,048,222 59,079 - 1,43 1,108,544
Segment (loss)/profi B (58) /& (25,457) 80,535 (1,714) (268) 53,006
Other information: HHEH:
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HENE BERRE NG - 57 - - 57
Depreciation ik (814) (233) ) (81) (1,131)
Impairment loss on trade and other receivables BUEFREBESETAESE (316,259) - - - (316,259)
Increase in fair value of investment properties REMEND L ERMEN - 40,000 - - 40,000
Impairment loss on inventories BRAERS (21,557) - - - (21,557)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENBA AMHNE - - 1,145 - 1,145
Advertising and commission expenses EERESH (74,291) (108) - - (74,399)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of goodwil HEERR REEE - - - (4,039) (4,039)
Additions to segment non-current assets HEEABNERDEE - 3 181 - 27
At 31 December 2016 R2016%12A31R
Segment assets AHEE 1,125935 1,730,709 192 8214 2,874,050
Segment liabillties Byt (1,024,958) (12,528) (2,784) (7,984 (1,048,254)

=

—2—xx58  Aptesmsmazn/ 1]



(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 38 FT1g40 ' LAA REITHR)

Hotel and

integrated

resort

management

and

Property Property consultancy
development leasing services Total

BERERER
VELES NERE HERRERRE ait
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTT ARETTR AEBTT AREFTR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BE015E12A1BILEE

Revenue from external customers PREFHA 667,510 58,032 546 726,088

Segment profit/loss) AHEA/ (B8 157,788 136,039 (1,426) 292,401

Other information: EfER:
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HLeng BERREEE - (117) = (117)
Depreciation il (1,393) (608) ) (2,002
Increase in fair value of investment properties REMENDALEMEN - 95,000 - 95,000
Reversal of impairment loss on inventories BEGEHEEE 13,367 = = 13,367
Advertising and commission expenses BERRE T (42,648) (225) (56) 42,929)
Additions to segment non-current assets TREABHERDEE 64 253 - 317

At 31 December 2015 R2015512731H

Segment assets PHEE 1,545,286 1719519 352 3,065,157

Segment liabilities ARafk (774,364) (13,645 (6,102) (794,111)



Profit or loss

Total profit of reportable segments

Other net expenses

Depreciation

Change in fair value of financial derivatives
Corporate finance costs

Other corporate expenses

Consolidated loss before tax

Assets

Total assets of reportable segments
Deferred tax assets

Unallocated corporate assets

Consolidated total assets

Liabilities

Total liabilities of reportable segments
Current tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 348 FT1g40 LA A R¥ITHR)

2015
RMB’000
AREFIT

B
ARG D a8 292,401
Hfh 7 H 558 (70,486)
e (288)
PTETEZ A ARBEEE =
R E KA (296,431)
H ¥R (12,141)
BRI AT 4R S B 1B (86,945)

BE
AREDHEERTE 3,265,157
EETIEEE 217
REDBEHNEEEE 421,574
IREREE 3,686,948

=R
BAmENHBERRE (794,111)
BB A E (144,532)
BEEHIEEE (341,393)
ReEDBEHNEEEE (2,330,471)

ReEmaE (3,610,507)



(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 38 FT1g40 ' LAA REITHR)

The Group’s revenue from external customers by geographical REBIZREE I E D REINBREF W
market is analysed as below: HIZDMBPAT
2015
RMB’000
ARET T
PRC, excluding Hong Kong and Macau PR NEERE KEBM 726,088
Macau B P =
726,088
During the year ended 31 December 2016, no customer (2015: HZE2016F12A31HItEFEE T &
nil) contributed for 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue. (20155 - B )X FP(EANE B2 I8 A10%
R Lo
2015
RMB’000
ARETT
Interest on bank and other borrowings wholly  ZBR54 A& & E R ER1T
repayable within five years BERREMEETS 259,130
Interest on bank and other borrowings not TNERSFAZIE EE’]
wholly repayable within five years RITERREMEETR L 37,301
Total borrowing costs BEKRANBEE 296,431
No borrowing costs have been capitalised in 2016 (2015: nil). R20164F @ W (E B KA F LAE K1k

(20154 : £ )



(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss: (a) HREBEERAMTIIE:

Current tax
PRC Corporate Income Tax
— Provision for the year
— Under provision in prior years

LAT
— Provision for the year

Total current tax

Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary
differences

Income tax expense

BB/
REBEMRFHR

—F AR
—UNEFEBBETRE

T IR ED
—F AR

B AR TR AR B

i FE i 8
ERERZELRED

PS5t X

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 348 FT1g40 LA A R¥ITHR)

2015
RMB’000
AREET T

19,394
6,671

26,065

104,970

131,035

27,952

158,987



(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 38 FT1g40 ' LAA REITHR)

(a) (Cont’d)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any income tax in
the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for both years has
been made in the consolidated financial statements as the
Group has no estimated assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong.

No provision for Macau Profits Tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statements as the Group has no
estimated assessable profits arising in Macau.

The provision for the PRC Corporate Income Tax is based
on a statutory rate of 25% of the taxable profits determined
in accordance with the relevant income tax rules and
regulations in the PRC for the year ended 31 December
2016 (2015: 25%).

LAT is levied on properties developed by the Group for
sale, at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on
the appreciation of land value, which under the applicable
regulations is calculated based on the proceeds of sales
of properties less deductible expenditure including lease
charges of land use rights, borrowing costs and all property
development expenditures.

(a)

(%)

REREHENRBERRHSHR
AIRRG AEEBEASRFEEHS
REBEBAREENEMAMAER-

RMEFE AR ANEELEREE
FTEAZ AT ERBEH  MRERE
MBERRLEREBNEHA R
e

RSB EIORPIFTE S 2 fhat
FERTUE N - AR & M S MR A |
FLORFIF S AT TR B

BRI IR IR B EEE
2016512 H31H IEFERE M 1S
T 45 Bl K2 35 5 78 TE B925 % & 2R B s )
HISETE L AT E (2015%F 1 25% ) ©

AEBHEMERNMERIR T E
1B 12 18 LAB0% 2 60%H) 2 3 Tt K B4
TR EN REBBMAG - L
BT IR 0 E WX TS SRR A F0
X (BRI EREEESH &
EXRARIBEMEBRRFA)GAE



(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 348 FT1g40 LA A R¥ITHR)

(b) Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting b) HBEAMEAENEHEFA T 2T
loss at applicable tax rate: E R AR

2015

RMB’000

AREFIT

Loss before tax Br AT 18 (86,945)

Notional tax calculated at PRC Corporate 1% Ff Bl 1> 2 Fr 15 75 R 25%

Income Tax rate of 25% (2015: 25%) (20154 : 25% ) st E K&

(Note) HHiE (KsE) (21,736)
Effect of different tax rates in other INEEE & P HoAth RERE =

jurisdictions in which the Group operates )/~ A § 2 &) 57 £ 16,676
Tax effect on LAT deductible for AJTE AT 5 B0 1Rk A 3 3 B 1

calculation of income tax purpose R IE R 2 (26,243)
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue AR B A B T I8 57 2 (4,402)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses ASATHR S R B I8 5 2 65,067
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RTAERREATIBEELN

recognised MEZE 17,984
LAT £ IBE 104,970
Under provision in prior years NEFEREETR 6,671
Income tax expense Fris®if 168,987
Note: It represents the tax rate of the jurisdiction where the operation of the Misk: WIOAREERIBYEBAEMITHE-

Group is substantially based.



(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 38 FT1g40 ' LAA REITHR)

2015
RMB’000
AREF T
Depreciation = 2,382
Less: Amount capitalised o= v k- (92)
2,290
Auditor’s remuneration: ZEEN S
— Current year —AREFEE 1,349
— Other services — H b AR 75 =
1,349
Staff costs including Directors’ emoluments: 8 T A B EEEH D :
— Salaries, bonus and allowances —T& 8BefEhh 37,554
— Retirement benefit scheme contributions — —EK4EFI5H &I 3 4,116
— Quarter expenses —EBEEEH 527
42,197
Less: Amount capitalised Vo= N [k (1,112)
41,085
Operating lease charges in respect of office WA E 2 K EHEEF
premises 6,530
Cost of inventories sold GFEHEKAR 406,946
Impairment loss on trade and other JE S BR 5% % H A JE R 2
receivables BEEE -
Direct outgoings (note) BEERX (Ki2) 5,151
Note: BT 5 -

Direct outgoings represent management fee expenses. BERAYIEERERY -



Notes to the Financial Statements
P End N

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (& 2B FTE5) - A AR TFIR)

13.Directors’ and Employees’ Emoluments 13.EEREEMS
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the FAESNHESEREBEERAM L3R
applicable Listing Rules and Companies Ordinance’s as follows: RARHEOIRE MEmT
Year ended 31 December 2016 B E2016F12A31HLEE
Retirement
benefit
Salaries and scheme Quarter
Fees allowances contributions  expenses Total
BB
Name of Director EEp3F we HFEREE HE [ BEER o

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TR ARBTRT ARMTR AR®T:R

Executive Directors HITEE

Chau Cheok Wa ez 103 - 5 - 108
Cheng Mei Ching BER 103 - 5 - 108
Yeung So Lai GES 103 783 15 720 1,621
Yeung So Mui e 103 - 5 - 108
Independent non-executive Directors BUIHITEE

Lo Wai Tung John EER 103 - - - 103
Tou Kin Chuen figieded 103 - - - 103
Wu Kam Fun Roderick Bk 103 - - - 103
Total FEH) 721 783 30 720 2,254

/

—BXEER k%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ@ﬂﬂ/119



(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 38 FT1g40 ' LAA REITHR)

Retirement
benefit
Salaries and scheme Quarter
Fees  allowances contributions expenses Total
RAKER
Name of Director LEdcz BE  FeREH  HEER  FER @it

RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBTL ARBTL ARETRT ARETR

Executive Directors HITEE

Chau Cheok Wa ek 97 - 5 - 102
Cheng Mei Ching xR 97 = 5 = 102
Qiu Bin (notg) B3 (Hrzt) 24 239 5 - 268
Yeung So Lai BEE 97 631 16 527 1,271
Yeung So Mui B&ig 97 = 5 = 102
Independent non-executive Directors BULHTEE

Lo Wai Tung John EEE 97 - = - 97
Tou Kin Chuen gL 97 - = = 97
Wu Kam Fun Roderick 5 E) 97 - = = 97
Total @t 703 870 36 527 2,136
Note: & -

Mr. Qiu Bin was retired on 29 May 2015 B3, %5 A 201545 A29 B R 1



(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 348 FT1g40 LA A R¥ITHR)

There was no arrangement under which a Director waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments during the year.

The five highest individuals in the Group during the year included
1 (2015: 1) Directors whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented above. The emoluments of the remaining
4 individuals for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out
below:

e MoERE
BB IR

Salaries and allowances
Retirement benefit scheme contributions

The emoluments of the remaining 4 (2015: 4) individuals with the
highest emolument is within the following band:

Nil to RMB1,000,000

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any
of the Directors or the highest paid individuals as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office.

The loss attributable to owners of the Company includes a loss
of approximately RMB511,452,000 (2015: RMB193,870,000)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company.

TE AR¥1,000,0007T

VTELHEETRAFERRZLRBNE
T -

AEERAFEREGESHEALTRE
1% (2016F 1B ES EMS&HR £
XA e Hera AT H Z=20165F12 31
HIEFENMSBEET

2015
RMB’000
ARETIT

2,234
187

2,421

Hera% (2016F 4B )M & e AL
M e&EEMT :

Number of
individuals
EE 8 H
2015

AEERN AEBEREATAEEHES
FOA LS - FEAREIRFINA
R ER B 30 A0 A 7R 55 (B B Y 2 B B
g

RAAREBABRGEBEREOARKE
511,452,0007T (20154F = A R #193,870,000
TT)RER  ZEBERARRNPEHRE
FRERIE
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The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: nil).

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

EEQUVEEDRKMNEZ=2016F12A31
BItFERPIE (2015%F : &) -

AATHEEARESREAR B EHRA
TEHEREENT

2015
RMB’000
ARBTIT

Loss for the year attributable to owners of ARAFIHA AFERNEGLEER

the Company and loss for the purpose of

FT{ER 2 B 18

basic loss per share

AT EEBREAREEER

(245,007)

Number of shares
IR & B
2015
Restated
ER7

Weighted average number of ordinary shares &t & & & E A EIE 2 L@k

Z INfE 15 8

for the purpose of basic loss per share

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of calculating basic loss per share for 2015 have been
retrospectively adjusted for the effect of bonus element in
connection to the rights issue completed in December 2016.

The diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per share
as for the year ended 31 December 2016, the potential ordinary
shares issuable in respect of outstanding share options and
convertible bonds have anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per
share.

The diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per share
as for the year ended 31 December 2015, the potential ordinary
shares issuable in respect of outstanding share options have
anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share.

1,5619,152,624

RE2015F St BB REREIR Z B i
R E B2016F 123 Ak 2 AR AT
EEANE Dz EFLERHE-

SRS EEEHgREREEMRAR  RE
RH E2016F12A31B IEFEE AR
RITHE 2 BIRE R Al IR EH K A] 27T
BELTEREEREAEBEEEREEY
2,

BREEEBEGREANBEMER  RE
EH E2015F12A31HIEFE AR E
TERRENEETEETARESR
EXEBEAERBEEYE-
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Leasehold Furniture Motor
improvement  and fixture vehicles Total
HEMEEE HEAREE AE #at
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT ARE®ETT ARETI AR®BTR
Property, plant and equipment ¥ ¥ - B E KRR HE
At cost R A
At 1 January 2015 MR2015F1 A1H = 5,941 8,612 14,558
Additions NE = 135 182 317
Disposal & - (18) (1,331) (1,349)
At 31 December 2015 and R2015F12H318 &

1 January 2016 2016%F1 A1H - 6,058 7,463 13,521
Acquisition of subsidiary U5 BE B 8 A A 587 29 364 980
Additions NE = 212 5 217
Disposal HE - (3,351) (231) (3,582)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB A A = (15) = (15)
Exchange differences fE i =58 22 1 13 36
At 31 December 2016 MR2016%F12A31H 609 2,934 7,614 11,157

Accumulated depreciation R25tinE
At 1 January 2015 7R2015%1 H1H - 4,906 4,406 9,312
Charge for the year KEFHE - 659 1,723 2,382
Eliminated on disposal H 6 B 4 88 - (18) (998) (1,016)
At 31 December 2015 and R2015F12H318 &

1 January 2016 20161 H1H = 5,547 5,13il 10,678
Acquisition of subsidiary W B BT B A ) 16 2 50 68
Charge for the year REERE 39 155 1,150 1,344
Eliminated on disposal 5 R SR - (3,351) (219) (3,570)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWB QA - (13) = (13)
Exchange differences B K, = 58 2 1 4 7
At 31 December 2016 R2016%F12A31H 57 2,341 6,116 8,514

Carrying values FREE
At 31 December 2016 2016512 H31H 552 593 1,498 2,643
At 31 December 2015 2015512 A31H - 511 2,332 2,843



(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 38 FT1g40 ' LAA REITHR)

2015
RMB’000
ARBTIT
At 1 January ®1A1H 1,597,000
Increase in fair value N EEN 95,000
At 31 December M12H31H 1,692,000
(a) All of the Group’s investment properties held under (a) AEBEREEHVFEHEERE 2
operating lease for rental purposes are measured using the EREMEHURA R ERAFTE - K
fair value model. The Group’s investment properties were EBEREMETE2016F12H318 &
revalued as at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 2015512 A31HE B A YW A E
by an independent firm of valuers, Roma Appraisals Limited, MEME REEE ISR ES
who have among their staff Fellows of the Hong Kong AEMEeEdre 8 AEENELE
Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the location BRNTTE SRR FEERARBER
and category of properties being valued, on a market value AMZEBEL2ZM@HISAHER
basis by reference to the comparable sales transaction and HERZ RESWAER -
income receivable in the relevant market.
(b) The Group’s investment properties at their carrying amounts b) AEEREMEZRERAEED T
are analysed as follows: ™~
2015
RMB’000
AR¥ET T
In Shenzhen, PRC AR BRI

— Medium-term lease —FRHRE 1,692,000
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(c) The Group leases out certain investment properties under () AEERELEHELRMESE TIRE
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period ME - BEZSEHENVNTH R —Z
of one to twenty years, with an option to renew the lease THFRRZBBRESNE M
after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated. None FEFT A R I =R © 1R20164F
of the leases has significant contingent elements as at 31 12A318  ZEHEH I SERHRA
December 2016. xo
The Group’s total future minimum lease payments under RE BRI A BB A 48 & M & A9
non-cancellable operating leases from investment properties BEYMEEBEERNRERERELR
are receivable as follows: BT :

2015

RMB’000

ARBTT

Within one year 1F RN 44,933
In the second to fifth years inclusive 2F E5F

(EEMFREEA) 156,270

After the fifth year 5F 1% 97,802

299,005

(d) At 31 December 2016 and 2015, all investment properties (d) 20164 M2015F12H31H K&
of the Group were pledged against certain bank and other BEFBREMFCERTAEEET
borrowings granted to the Group and details of which are BITREMERER R B@EFE
set out in note 26(d) to the financial statements. B B 15 & B 5E26(d) ©

(e) Details of the Group’s investment properties and information () R2016F12A31H AEBKEY
about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2016 are E¥CHBREEARBEER ZERD
as follows: I

Fair value

RMB’000

(Level 3)

ARE

AR T

(E38)

All investment properties FrBIR &Y 1,732,000
There were no transfers between levels in fair value hierarchy FRNWEAREZRIEZHNER

during the year. %o
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(e) (Cont'd)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements of
investment properties:

Valuation technique Key input

fEER M TEBAE

All Investment
properties

Direct comparison
approach

Direct comparison approach assuming
sale of the property in its existing
state with the benefit of vacant
possession and by making reference
to comparable sales transactions
as available in the relevant market
and also considered the basis of
capitalisation of the net income
receivable under market unit rate

The key Variable:
(1) Price per square meter; and
(2) Level adjustment

FEREME HEEHERE BERLBERREABZEEAEEN
TROEARRLE 2EHETS
LTARLBRZHERS TEBRE

M5 EBRKBRAFRZERL

The fair value measurement of the investment properties
determined by using direct comparison approach is
positively correlated to the market unit rate.

(e) (&)

BRREMEEIPLAAEFEZE

oE

Significant
unobservable inputs

FABRCEEBAR

The market unit rates

range from RMB10,535

(2015: RMB10,290)
to RMB43,000 (2015:
RMB42,000) per
square meter with
weighted average of
RMB26,897 (2015:
RMB26,272) per
square meter.

Level adjustment on
individual floors of
the property range
from 50% to 70% on
specific levels

MEERNTETAK
AR #10,5357T (2015
F: AR#10,2007) &
A R 43,0007t (2015
F: AR#42,0007T)
MEFHEEBARET
ARAR%26,8977T
(2015 : AR H526,272

L) °

NESBENERERD

1B 512 B 5150% £ 70%

Relationship
unobservable inputs
to fair value
EEZBENBMAER
ARENEE

The higher the price
per square meter,
the higher the fair
value.

The higher the level
adjustment, the
lower the fair value.

SYHKERER

RAEBE-

BRALS
DA BB

BRERLEZEE 2 REME R AER
EEMGLEE2LHEE-



(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 348 FT1g40 LA A R¥ITHR)

2015
RMB’000
ARET T
Properties for future development/under HEER KRR,
development for sale ERPME 334,000
Completed properties held for sale BEHENBE R I 990,477
1,324,477
(@) The analysis of carrying value of leasehold land included in (a) BEEHEHENRKAZRERFTY
properties for future development and under development XERBFEHENERTIWEANTEE
for sale and completed properties held for sale is as follows: THEREES WO -
2015
RMB’000
ARETT
In PRC H
- Long leases —REIHE 78,839
Included above are amounts totalled approximately il SR EEE HELHARE15,288,000
RMB15,288,000 (2015: RMB15,288,000) representing 7T (20154 © AR #15,288,0007T ) * AP
lease payment for land use rights of certain pieces of land B AR BE TR -t A -t R R Ay AR
in the PRC. The Group is in the process of applying for the EFIE - ANEEIF R BT E R
land use right certificates subject to the approval from the MEZR R AR P B S L o
relevant PRC authorities.
Based on the legal opinion obtained, the Directors are of the RIBFIESHEZER EFRARK
opinion that the Group is the beneficial owner of the land SERTHEAENEREBA I
use rights and is entitled to lawfully and validly use these EEEEZERFERZE I FERAE-

land use rights.
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(b) The amount of properties for future development and under
development for sale expected to be recovered after more
than one year is analysed as follows:

Properties for future development/under HEEHRRFAE,
development for sale BRPYE

Apart from the above, all inventories are expected to be
recovered within one year.

(c) At 31 December 2016, certain inventories were pledged
against bank and other borrowings granted to the Group
and details of which are set out in note 26(d) to the financial
statements.

(d) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense and included in profit or loss is as follow:

Cost of inventories sold GFEHEKR

Reversal of impairment loss on inventories  # B 7 & 2 R EEE

Impairment loss on inventories FEZRERRSE
Trade receivables (note(a)) FEWERFR (Hit(a)
Other receivables (note(b)) H bWk (Bitm)
Loans and advances BER KRB
Prepaid land costs (note(c)) TER AR (HaE(c))
Prepayments and deposits (note (d)) AR RIEE (A1)
Amount due from a related company JE U BE B N B FR IR

(o) FEEIEBIFABFAIZRHHELE
ARFERERPYEN SRS T
T

2015
RMB’000
ARBTIT

334,000

B bR oh - B H A 5 T AT A
ERBR -

(c) R2016F12A31H BT HEEHR A
TR BRI IRTT R E A B A 7
o AEEEUR B s R 2k M 5E26(d) ©

(d) EAMYBERIABEZEFESRE
DT

2015
RMB’000
AR®ETT

406,946
(13,367)

393,579

2015
RMB’000
AR®ET T

67,750
10,847
126,284
101,314
330,782

636,977
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(@) Trade receivables are mainly arisen from leasing and sales

of properties. Rental receivables from tenants are due on
presentation of invoices and no credit terms for sales of
properties unless otherwise specified in the underlying
agreements with the property purchasers.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables, based on invoice
date for property leasing and delivery date for property
sales, is as follows:

0 to 3 months 0= 31E A
more than 3 months RRA3E A

The ageing analysis of trade receivables which were past
due but not impaired is as follows:

0 to 3 months 0Z31E A
more than 3 months A3 A

Regarding the receivables from the property purchasers of
approximately RMB46,060,000 (2015: RMB67,420,000),
they were related to 29 flats sold and were being in progress
for registration by the end of the reporting period. As the
property purchasers have already obtained the pre-approved
mortgage loan from banks and which will be drawn
down for settlement of receivables upon the completion
of registration process, the Directors consider that no
allowance for impairment is necessary in respect of these
trade receivables.

(@) BUBRTIEXREMERERHE-

EUREFPFESNEAZERIE 9
EHEYBEEHRR BYEERZ
TR e > B MR RE BRSO ©

EUPRFIZMERENEZBH LY
EHEXNHHANREITWT

2015
RMB’000
ARBET T

67,750

67,750

£ 78 BB 10 ARORU(E B FE W BR TR AR e
T

2015
RMB’000
ARBTT

67,750

67,750

S 2 B R FIB A A R#46,060,000
7t (20154 © AR #67,420,0007T) il
EORBEAR BRERFEHBLE
RIEEERH2EAERE BRUEE
REMBAMESEMEBER RELRE
7 58 K 1 5% 3¢ T8 1% 45 72 BR DA 45 & 18 WK
B EERA BARZRERERBERTEL
B
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(a)

(Cont’d)

The remaining balance of approximately RMB181,000 (2015:
RMB330,000) was mainly related to rental recoverables.
As rental deposits were held as collateral over the balance,
the Directors consider that no allowance for impairment is
necessary in respect of these receivables.

Included in other receivables is an amount due from a major
construction contractor of approximately RMBnil (2015:
RMB8,831,000).

The Group’s prepaid land costs comprise partial payment of
land costs for acquisition of land use rights in the PRC upon
successfully bidding at land auctions conducted by the PRC
government and the related preparatory costs.

At the end of the reporting period, the prepayments and deposits
includes RMBnil (2015: RMB316,259,000) being earnest monies
(the “Earnest Monies”) paid under two memorandums of
understanding entered into with different independent third
parties in relation to two property development projects in
Anhui Province and Jiangsu Province. As the Earnest Monies
may not be recovered, full provision has been made during the
year ended 31 December 2016.

The remaining balance was mainly related to a deposit of
approximately RMB84,603,000 (2015: Nil) placed in court
about the litigation disclosed in note 34(b).

(a) (%&)

#REE 4 AR #181,0007T (20154
AR #330,0007t) £ ZHEWE &
1 - AR ERFA S E A EN KT
mmEE EERATELERZE
JE 5 R TR A/E MO A o

H b i UFRIE P B 1E FE U B SR
BREKEBELHAREZIT (2015F : A
K #8,831,0007T) °

AEBBENLHXABEERN PR
TRERF L RERER L ERE
S A BP0 £ 3 A AR A R A RE B it
B

REBHR BRRRERSBER
BETARBILE=ZHILAMHG
REBERHEITHHEES ([HE
2I)ARBET (2016 AR
316,259,0007T) ' W RAURLZHE &
IEHENMEMEZRIER - BN
BB AT E - BHZE2016F12
A31BIFEEEL 2 ERHE -

R A A R #84,603,0007T (2015
F . E)EE ALK A0 EE AR
AT FRERT RS -
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(@) Included in pledged deposits are:

() Deposits of approximately RMB296,000 (2015:
RMB295,000) pledged with certain banks as guarantee
deposits for mortgage loan facilities granted by the
banks to purchasers of the Group’s properties.

(i) Deposits of approximately RMB1,338,000 (2015:
RMB2,371,000) pledged with banks securing the
Group’s bank and other borrowings as set out in note
26(d).

(b) The pledged deposits are denominated in RMB. Conversion
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations.

(c) At 31 December 2016, the pledged deposits are subjected
to floating interest rate ranged from 0% to 0.3% (2015: 0%
to 0.3%) per annum.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank balances and cash
are denominated in the following currencies:

RMB AR
United States Dollars ETT
Hong Kong Dollars BT
Macau Pataca B P

Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the
PRC'’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations.

At 31 December 2016, bank balances of approximately
RMB143,439,000 (2015: RMB27,768,000) are subjected to
floating interest rate ranged from 0% to 0.3% (2015: 0% to
0.3%) per annum.

(@) AEBEEREFRERE:

(i) &4 AR#¥296,0007T (2015
F: ARM295,0007T) ° % Fi%
SNRETRIBRTAEEYE
BERNRBEZRREERREIR
BFAZZRIT

(i) BREA FE26(d)H AR = EER 1T K
HmEEMERTRITINABAR
#1,338,0007T (20155 - AR #
2,371,0007T ) K 1F 3K °

() EHREFRAARKEE  ARE LB
NS 7838 <7 T B OMBE B IR (R ) I A
- EERNEBEERE -

(c) 201654128318 @ EIFF IR F
MZEANF0%ZE0.3% (20154 : 0% =
0.3% ) K Z BRI R ET B »

A R 1T AR RIS PR T A T 5
A -

2015
RMB’000
ARETTT

27,095
74
599

27,768

AR N 28 7 p BN E B 2 iR
{5 B A5 I - EE RS EEIEMTE

MR2016F12A31H RITHEH O A
R #143,439,0007T (20156 : A R ¥
27,768,0007T ) #& 5 F & 1) 0% Z0.3%
(20155 : 0% E0.3% ) B Z B F| K518,
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Trade payables FERTBR 5K
Other creditors and accrued charges HEMpEAmRERE R

The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows:

0 - 3 months or on demand 0Z 3 A sk iz Bk

Receipt in advance represented sales proceeds received
from purchasers in connection with the Group’s pre-sales of
properties and prepaid rental and management fee from tenants
of the Group’s investment properties. All receipt in advance are
expected to be settled within one year.

All rental and other deposits are expected to be settled after
more than one year.

Bank loans IRITE X

- Secured —BiEH

— Unsecured — IR
Other loans H A E K

— Secured —G5HEH

— Unsecured — K
Convertible bonds (note e) AR ES (fite)

2015
RMB’000
ARBTT

81,442
371,120

452,562

e RR KRB D AT 2T

2015
RMB’000
AR®ETTT

81,442

BUREREEARBEERENEBES
WHHIHERMSAEEARERENE
WHEFPKRMBENEE N ERE AR
WHRBRBERMERNGEE -

R
5

FEHEREMZS AR FRE

i

2015
RMB’000
ARETTT

517,500

517,500

200,000
1,320,761

1,620,761

2,038,261
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The bank and other borrowings are repayable as follows: JEEENRITREMEENT
2015
RMB’000
ARET T
Within one year or on demand R—FERHIZEK 1,558,261
In the second year F2F 35,000
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FEIESF(FHELHF) 115,000
After the fifth year 5F 1% 330,000
2,038,261
Less: Amounts due within one year B —FREIEAFIE
(shown under current liabilities) GIRRBEE) (1,558,261)
Amounts due after one year —FIEEIHFAE 480,000
The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank and other AEERITREMEERNREET U
borrowings are denominated in the following currencies: T3 EH#EETE -
2015
RMB’000
AREET T
Hong Kong Dollars BT 1,085,761
RMB AR 952,500

2,038,261
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The following table details the interest rate profile of the
Group’s bank and other borrowings at the reporting date:

B E A RE &

Fixed rate borrowings:

Variable rate borrowings: FEHAREE:

At 31 December 2016, the Group’s assets pledged as
security for the Group’s bank and other borrowings are as

follows:

Investment properties "EYE
Inventories 58
Pledged deposits EHFER

TR A R ER1T R E A A
EEE LRSS

2015
Effective
interest rate
BBRA =
% RMB’000
AR T T

2.00-18.00 1,520,761

5.64-7.07 517,500

MR2016%12 8318 » AAREEIRIT
FEMEEMERNANESREED
T

2015
RMB’000
AR®ETTT

1,692,000
990,477
2,371

2,684,848
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Loan Derivative
Component Component Total
EXBSH FTEBD @Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR AR ARETT
Principal amount N 505,077 - 505,077
Value of derivative component at RETHBRITESHERE
issuance date (66,124) 66,124 -
Transaction cost and discount amortized E #5325 A R iT:E 2,029 = 2,029
Change in fair value of derivative TEBD DA EED
component - (7,138) (7,138)
Exchange differences bE R ERE 4,161 627 4,788
Carrying amount at 31 December 2016 F2016F12A31H &Y
RmEE 445,143 59,613 504,756

On 8 December 2016, the Company issue a two-year
zero coupon convertible bonds (the “Convertible Bonds”)
for a principal amount of HK$570,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB505,077,000 at the issuance date) to Fame Select
Limited, the major shareholder of the Company to set
off the balance of the shareholder’s loan due to Fame
Select Limited on a dollar-for-dollar basis against the total
subscription price payable by Fame Select Limited in respect
of the subscription of the Convertible Bonds.

The value of the derivative component of the Convertible
Bonds was determined by an independent valuer, Assets
Appraisal Limited, based on the Binomial Tree Pricing
Model at the issuance date of the Convertible Bonds and
the year ended at 31 December 2016. The assumption of
the valuation of the convertible option embedded in the
Convertible Bonds are set out as follows:

Fair value at measurement date
Exercise price T1E(E
Expected volatility T8 HA R 18
Expected option life T8 HA R A 7 HABR
Expected dividends TEHARR B
Risk-free interest rate £ 2 g A X

R EEHNAAE

R2016F12A8H ' A" A & A A QA
AFEZERFBZEERAAZETAS
¥ /570,000,000 7T (72 ¥ 47 B 5
HE R AR®505,077,0007T ) & R
FHTRERBRES ([ATRRE
#]1) LBEERARBLRE TR
BHRENNAREE HEENEE
ERAFKIREER

MR ERTES S NEEHB LG
BERMEETEBERAR QTN TR
BEHE1TH B RE £20165F12 A31
BIEFEER-_XEEERERT -
RBEEFASH I EBREEEGE
BRI AT -

31 December 8 December
2016 2016

20164 20164
12A31H 12H8H

HK$0.2047%E 7  HK$0.2187% 7T
HK$0.26078 7t  HK$0.260/8 7T

93.502 94.466
2 YearstF 2 YearstE
1.035% 0.762%
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The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility and
assumed to be constant throughout the remaining life of the
Convertible Bonds.

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the
movements during the year are as follows:

TEER R R R 4B (IR - IR R T
BREH B THRAGETE

RERA M BARNKARERHELRIE (B
E)/BEBORFAEHUT :

Depreciation

allowances in
excess of related Capitalisation Total
Revaluation depreciation Total deferred of interest deferred tax
of investment B tax liabilities expenses (assets)
properties BEREN BEHE BR{EH BERE
EftRENE nEXHE BEAE FEXH (BE)AfE
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2015 ®2015%1 418 285,888 27,641 313,529 (306) (306)
Charge to profit and loss Bill5 3 Ey 23,750 4114 27,864 89 89

At 31 December 2015 and #0155 12431 K

1 January 2016 2016F171R 309,638 31,755 341,398 (217) (217)
Charge to profit and loss Bl ES 10,000 4,209 14,209 115 115
At 31 December 2016 ®2016512A317 319,638 35,964 355,602 (102) (102)

At 31 December 2016, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately RMB159,568,000 (2015: RMB179,901,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams. Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
RMB159,568,000 (2015: RMB179,901,000) will expire after five
years from the year of assessment they relate to.

M2016F12A31H A& E#EE K8 A
TRIEE5 18 49 A R#159,568,0007T (2015
F: AR #179,901,0007T ) 7] 4 K 4 &
PR A o AR AR g ) AR A BT FEORI - B 4 AR
RELEHBEEE st ARERBIBBEN
&5 B A KR #159,568,0007T (20154 : A
R #179,901,0007T ) 14 B A8 R R Bt
[ERB5F1&E M °
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Note
k3
Authorised: ETE:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each &R E{E0. 10T E ARk
Issued and fully paid: BETRER -
At 1 January M A1H
Issue of shares under share options 1R#& R ITRG (@) (b)
Issue of shares under rights issue IR BT AR ©
At 31 December M2A318
RMB equivalent ARKEER
Notes:
(@ On 10 April 2015, 29,600,000 ordinary shares of the Company were issued

and allotted in relation to the exercise of share options pursuant to the share
option scheme of the Company at the exercise price of HK$0.398 per share
for a total cash consideration of HK$11,780,800 (equivalent to approximately
RMB9,329,000) of which approximately HK$2,960,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB2,344,000) was credited to share capital and the balance
of HK$8,820,800 (equivalent to approximately RMB6,985,000) was credited
to share premium account.

On 7 May 2015, 4,500,000 ordinary shares of the Company were issued
and allotted in relation to the exercise of share options pursuant to the share
option scheme of the Company at exercise price of HK$0.398 per share
for total cash consideration of approximately HK$1,791,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB1,412,000) of which approximately HK$450,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB355,000) was credited to share capital and
the balance of approximately HK$1,341,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB1,057,000) was credited to share premium account. The new shares
rank pari passu in all respects with the existing shares of the Company.
Approximately RMB3,137,000 was transferred from capital reserve to share
premium account.

On 16 December 2016, the Company raised approximately HK$901,389,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB802,137,000) by way of issuing
4,506,944,175 rights shares of HK$0.10 each at the subscription price of
HK$0.20 per rights share basis on three rights shares for every one share held
on 21 November 2016, the record date of the rights issue.

Number of shares

Share capital

Lt = S
2015 2015
HK$'000
TAT
50,000,000,000 5,000,000
1,468,214,725 146,821
34,100,000 3,410
1,502,314,725 150,231
2015
RMB’000
AREET T
123,644

fi i

(@)

201544 4108 » A2 §]29,600,0000% ¥ i %
EAREA R B R T B LAFT (£ (B T 1%0.398/8
TCATHERRAET AT R -BRSRE
711,780,800/ 7T (1HE R 49 A R #9,329,000
JC)  H H 492,960,0005 7T (HHERHARE
2,344,0007t) B 5 AR - i #4%E8,820,800/%8
T (BSR4 AR #6,985,0007T) Bt AKX R
A AR A9 V5 (B B

2015665 A7H B IR A A B R 8%
TEE SRR 0.3987 1T RARMEM TR
fic & 2N 2 714,500,0000% L @A - IR S RELD
£1,791,0007% 7t (B S5 R 4 A R #1,412,000
JC)  H A 49450,0008 T (HHERHARE
355,0007T ) 5T A BR 4 - 82 T~ 491,341,000 7T
(FHERH ARH1,057,00070) 51 A B D 3% B
BR-FBROEMAIFAERNRRBRARNDE
BERER - 4 AR 13,137,000 2 B A E
HERESRMDEER-

M2016F 12 A16H * AN A 7] #% # A% 52 &% A 58
201611 A21 B &% A — R AR 1) AT & 3 3AR
B AE 10 2 B2 LA E AR A AR AR 190.208 T 2 R
B8 (815 B 3174,506,944,1 750 B AXE 1H0.10/8
TL 2 B 15 &£ #9901,389,000%8 7T (HHER 4
AR #802,137,0007T) °
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The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maximise the return to the shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light
of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of the net
debt-to-equity ratio. For this purpose the Group defines net
debt as total debt (which includes trade and other payables, and
accruals and bank and other borrowings), less pledged deposits
and bank and cash balances.

During 2016, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from
2015 was to maintain the net debt-to-equity ratio in line with
market expectations. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
issue new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

The net debt-to-equity ratio at the reporting date is as follows:

Trade and other payables, and accruals [& 1~ B 3k + £t JE 1~ 3% &

TEREBA
Bank and other borrowings RITREAMEE
Total debt BEE

L A TE R
B IRITHEB RS

Less: Pledged deposits
Less: Bank balances and cash

Net debt FEE
Total equity R
Net debt-to-equity ratio FEEHEREE

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for the
Group to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to
have a public float of at least 25% of the issued shares.

AEEEREANBEERRRRELAR
BHRERL LS B BEDEREE
B FERBRREREKNE -

AEEEBLREHHEEARBETR
A RER NERSREREBHRBER T AR
HENRSEEKFERFNERMRR
R E 0T B K AR PR 2 R ERAS S 1 - 3F (R e
RERBNECHERRBELHE-

AEENFREHRaL XSEEER
HEARE RUEARERFREERER
HEE (EERRNARAREBEMNRE
BIREARRITREMES) REEIRE
REIRITRIB MR-

MR20164F A - AR & B #) 2% B B22015F (R
B AFEEHEREEFEMIEE
HoBTHBAAERZLE KBNS
FAREN TRENKRE S8 BITHK
M REEATRR SEFTNEBHRE
SHEBEURLBE-

RESHS FaESRELENT:

2015

Notes RMB’000
Mo =E AREFIT
23 452,562
26 2,038,261
2,490,823

21 (2,666)
22 (27,768)
2,460,389

76,441

3,219%

ME—SMNBEABRS  BERFAKENE
AT LA ARBBRFEED25%
BERTRONAZRFRE -
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On 31 August 2016, the Group acquired 100% interest in Sun
Travel Ltd. (“Sun Travel”) (formerly named as Suncity Group
Tourism Limited), a subsidiary engaged in tourism business at a
consideration of MOP1,500,000 (equivalent to RMB1,256,068)
in order to expand its business. The consideration has been
settled by way of issuing a promising note with zero interest and
repayable within two years from the date of issuing. The Group
has obtained control and consolidated the results of Sun Travel
from 1 September 2016 onwards. The carrying value of the
identified net assets of Sun Travel acquisition date approximated
its fair value.

The following table summarises the consideration paid for Sun
Travel, the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at
the acquisition date:

Total consideration BRE

Assets acquired/(Liabilities assumed)
Plant and equipment
Trade and other receivables

B E &

Pledged deposit EIR1F K
Bank balances and cash IRITHEHR AR S

Trade and other payables, and accruals

Inter-group subsidiaries balances B ARER
Net liabilities assumed P B & 55
Goodwill Bk

AIERER N2016F8A31H A& M
AR B R P9 #51,500,0007T (FHE R AR
#£1,256,0687T ) UK 8 K 5 ik 2 8 R A 7]
(IRFEkiE]) (AIEAGHEERER
FRAT])HI100% M - Z B A Rt Eik
BER -ZNECERRITHHRBITME
NEBZ N EERLEERIAIN A&
BB ERS ARGk G4 - I H2016%5F
9R1 AR ERIGIREMNEESZE AR K
f5 IR 2 U0 BE B EREY AT A8 Rl 2 R B E IR E
BEEEARERES-

TREME ARG IREZ FHRE - AT
BEELMAAEEERKERBRNAR
& :

FRRBEE, (FrAEAE)

JFE Uit B R e L A 8 A 3R

ENERR  HaENRRBRER

The analysis of net cash flow in respect of EHHEWEMNEBEAINERSRESNAOT

acquisition of a subsidiary is follows:

Cash and cash equivalents acquired

TR e MRS EEY

Net cash inflow from acquisition of a subsidiary W B R R ELRIRE R AFE

The loss for the year ended 31 December 2016 included
an amount of approximately RMB10,000 representing loss
attributable to Sun Travel since its acquisition on 31 August
2016.

REE2016F12831B It FEHEBRTEANE
HR % 5201698 A31 B # Uk B8 A8 & 15 7Y 15 18
#9 AR #10,0007T °
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Goodwill represents the total of the fair value of the
consideration transferred and the fair value of the net identifiable
liabilities assumed. On the acquisition date, the fair value of
the net liabilities assumed was approximately RMB2,783,000.
Goodwill recognised of approximately RMB4,039,000 was
considered to be immediately impaired by management at the
acquisition date.

Investment in subsidiaries R B AR RIRE
Prepayments and deposits FENRIENRES
Bank balances and cash RITER MRS
Financial derivatives ME2MIE
Other payables and accruals HEmENRRBERER
Amounts due to subsidiaries A B B8 A RIFRIE
Current tax liabilities NERIBAE
Borrowings BE

NET ASSETS EEFE

Share capital A& 7

Reserves Gk

TOTAL EQUITY R

()  The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and repayable

on demand.

HMEEMEERNEZAABEHEMAIESR
EFEARBEZET - PRI R E - BT
EBEFEAABELN A ARK2,783,000
T-BEEERA BRABEHARK
4,039,0007T B FA Uk & B 37 BB {E ©

Note
Bt 5

31(b)

2015
RMB’000
ARETTT

1,825,465
316,337
57
(195,637)
(802,104)
(4,333)
(1,085,761)

54,024

123,644
(69,620)

54,024

() FEANMBARREREER 2ERAREX

5 (E 2 o
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The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements

therein are presented in the consolidated statement of profit

or loss and other comprehensive income and consolidated

statement of changes in equity.

At 1 January 2015 #201561A1R
Loss for the year rEEER

B HN AR E
RERRERTRD

Share options cancelled
Issue of shares under
share options

At 31 December 2015 and R2015F12A31A K
1 January 2016 2016%1A1A

Loss for the year rEEER

Issue of shares under RERBETRR

right issue

At 31 December 2016 R2016F12A31H

Note
i

28(b)

28(c)

Share
premium
BB EE
RMB’000

ARETT

986,863

1,179

998,042

401,069

AEERFRELEZEINSEANEAR

=N EM IR SR RERE
KAET e
Merger Capital Accumulated
reserve reserve losses Total
B eN 2 ER @t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETR AR%ETr ARETR
(752) 22,823 (892,634) 116,300
- - (193,870) (193,870)
= (92) = (92)
- (3,137) - 8,042
(752) 19,594 (1,086,504) (69,620)
- - (511,452) (511,452)
- - - 401,069
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Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in the share premium account of the Company
are distributable to the shareholders of the Company
subject to the provisions of the Memorandum and
Articles of Association and provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to
be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

The merger reserve represents the difference between
the nominal value of shares of the subsidiary acquired
over the nominal value of the shares used by the
Company exchange therefore.

The statutory reserve, which is non-distributable, is
appropriated from the profit after tax of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries under the applicable laws and regulations in
the PRC.

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the actual
or estimated number of unexercised share options
granted by the Company recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for equity-settled share-
based payments in note 4(p) to the financial statements.

The exchange reserve represents the cumulative
balance arising from exchange differences on translating
foreign operations. The exchange difference is included
in other comprehensive income/expense for the year
and may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss.

REFASHSREDE ARARK
s ERTHEE A HO Ik T A
NAIRR EXEBERZAE R
AEERARERXPARR: B
ZREERREREZBHEAR
BB EEME R BRI BEFES
HBIEIER

BOTRE IR EEAHE AR
Befn VEE R AR R 5 A I
MEEZHNEZR-

AERETAI DK WAREF E
B RAR RORR B AR B B
JBB X B YRR 1% 048 B o 88 4 o

ENRFEERARAME LR
TERBEERSATHENR
RfE - TIRBEM B HRRM E4(0)F
FRIARE 2 A8 H AR D R B R Y
TR MR A S 5 R FER -

[E Xt R B IR IN R TS RO [
AEBREENRBEER - ERLE
Bt ARFEEMEEEAF
SO AR BERBEREFDEER

N
ZS o
1T



Notes to the Financial Statements
P End N

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (& 2B FTE5) - A AR TFIR)

32.Equity-settled Share-based Payments NRUEREERUIBRABEREN
IRE

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 31 January ARAF200741 A31 B RN —E R #E
2007 whereby the Directors are authorised, at their discretion, FE BUESERETNERFASE
to invite eligible participants such as employees and consultants MEEREMRESERZ2HEHE (BER
of the Group, including directors of any company in the Group, EEETHEANARMNES) RBAQARK
to subscribe for shares of the Company. Each option gives 0o RRERB AERNI0BTERNKE
the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share of the BHRKRER TFBEAER  AIHEBEET
Company at a predetermined exercise price plus a consideration FERE—_RAQ FEBER-

of HK$10 per option holder.

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants that (@) REE BB FRHRHEBEORIARF
existed at the balance sheet date are as follows, HoT B ERRES R
whereby all options are settled by physical delivery BETENRT:
of shares:

2016
Number of Contractual Exercise
options Vesting conditions  life of options price
ARELE BEAN ARESHES THE

Options granted to employees ~ EFEEHNARE

- on 15 May 2007 -R2007F5515H 596,485  Six months from the date of grant 10-years HK$4.134
miEH A Mgt e A 105 41347

- on 10 October 2007 -R2007£10810A 444,425  Six months from the date of grant 10-years HK$6.728
MR B w6 A 10% 6.728% 7

- on 12 December 2013 - R2013512R12R 462,559 Next day from the date of grant 10-years HK$0.344
HRLEHEA 10% 0.344% 7

Options granted to third parties % ¥ %= A K2 RE

- on 15 May 2007 -R2007F5515H 5,786,833  Six months from the date of grant 10-years HK$4.134
Mk A Mgt ReE A 10% 413487

- on 13 February 2008 - #2008%F2F13A 3,558,149 Six months from the date of grant 10-years HK$3.822
Mk A Mgt e A 105 3,822

- on 12 December 2013 - 12013128 12H 108,497,628 Next day from the date of grant 10-years HK$0.344
mELARZA 105 0.3443 10

114,346,079

=

—e-xEag  Aptesmsraz/143

/
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2015

Options granted to employees
-on 15 May 2007

-on 10 October 2007
- on 12 December 2013

Options granted to third parties
-on 15 May 2007

- on 13 February 2008

-on 12 December 2013

BT RS MARE
— 1200758158

—~R2007£10A108
—~R2013%E127128

RPE=HMARE
— 12007458158

— 1200827138

—~R2013%E127128

Exercise period

TR

15 November 2007 to 14 May 2017
2007411 B15B £2017%5 148

10 April 2008 to 9 October 2017
20084 B10H 22017410 A9H

13 August 2008 to 12 February 2018
2008F8H13H £2018F2 A12H

13 December 2013 to 12 December 2023
2013512138 £2023F 128 12H

Number of Contractual
options Vesting conditions life of options
RREEE GEKE ARELNES

515,813 Six months from the date of grant
B E R E e A

384,318 Six months from the date of grant
B E R E el A

400,000 Next day from the date of grant
mELASEA

5,004,188 Six months from the date of grant
i B E a6 A

3,076,924  Six months from the date of grant
B E a6 A

89,500,000 Next day from the date of grant
ML ASHEA

98,981,243

Exercise price
TEE
2015

HK$4.78
4788 T
HK$7.78
7.78% T
HK$4.42
4.428 7T
HK$0.398
0.398/8 T

10-years
106

10-years
105

10-years

106

10-years
106
10-years
106
10-years

106

Exercise
price

4

HK$4.78
4T8%T
HK$7.78
TI8%TT
HK$0.398
0398/ T

HK$4.78
4T8BT
HK$4.42
44287
HK$0.398
0.398/8 T

Number of option

ARERE

2015

5,520,001

384,318

3,076,924

89,900,000

98,881,243
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Outstanding at beginning of year &) i A 71E

Lapsed during the year F R
Exercised during the year FREITHE
Adjusted during the year FRFHE
Outstanding at end of year FREARITHE
Exercise at end of year FERAITITE

During the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2016, no
share options were granted and no equity-settled share-
based payments have been charged to consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

The share options outstanding at 31 December 2016 had
exercise prices of HK$0.344, HK$3.822, HK$4.134 or
HK$6.728 and a weighted average remaining contractual life
of 6.38 years (2015: 7.38 years).

2015
Weighted
average
exercise Number
price of options
15
TEE RREHAR

HK$0.692 133,981,243

0.692% 7T
HK$0.398  (1,000,000)
0.398% 7T
HK$0.398  (34,100,000)
0.398% 7T

HK$0.796 98,881,243
0.796/8 T

HK$0.796 98,881,243
0.796/8 T

B 20159 F20165F12A31H 1L
B BIERR R E REE AR
RE RN AERONRILEEE
mEkEMEERERF IR -

201612 831 H i K 171 R A 1
" 1T {8 £0.34478 T - 3.822/8 71
4.1347% T 5%6.728% 7T © M p04E F
Hir T A 4 F 1 56.384F (20154 :
7.38%F) o
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The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share
options granted is measured based on either the Black-
Scholes pricing model or the binomial lattice model. The
contractual life and expectations of early exercise of the
share option were used as inputs into relevant models.

AR T R R ER P BR TS O 2 72
EN2RARTRBRENRD A ER
IR TREEN AR EBEM-F R
ERAR -FRMEERAK RN
REEAFE - RBEENESOFRR
BEHRFTEIERBEEBERAG AR
= o

15 May
2007
20075
5A15H
Fair value at measurement date REERBNALE HK$0.47
0A47TAT
Share price RE HK$1.84
18487
Exercise price 1 E HK$1.84
18487
Expected volatility (expressed as ~ TAERRIE (LAZ S
weighted average volatility used KRR TR ER
in the models) T) 48.9%
Option life (expressed as weighted ~ REFH (U ZSEER 3.25 years
average life used in the models) KRR Mg TEERR 3.25%
)
Expected dividends BHRE 3.4%
Risk-free interest rate (based on mERAE(MIEESE
Exchange Fund Notes) BiHE) 4.2%
Exit Rate HEx -
Valuation model used RROMEEER Black-Scholes

{85 — & @

10 October 13 February 12 December
2007 2008 2013
20075 2008F 2013F
10A10H 2A138 124128
HK$0.64 HK$0.54 HK$0.25
0.6475 7T 0.547 T 0.257% 7T
HK$2.93 HK$1.61 HK$0.395
2.93%57T 16187 0.395% 7T
HK$2.99 HK$1.70 HK$0.398
2.997% 7T 17057 0.398% 7T
61.1% 56.2% 91.3%
10 years 10 years 10 years
10F 10 10
1.21% - -
4.3% 2.7% 2.205%

- - 53.02%
Binominal Binominal Binominal
.E: ZEs ZBER

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life of
the share options), adjusted for any expected changes to
future volatility based on publicly available information.

Share options were granted under a service condition. The
condition has not been taken into account in the grant
date fair value measurement of the services received. There
was no market conditions associated with the share option
grants.

FEHPR IR TR B E 2R R (RIBRAR
RHINEF S T FMEE) A
REBEARAAERAREMERE

B R R 1 o

SRR HEAR S8 R T O L9 © R AL
5 T PR AR TS R 1 B BRI 24
CHE B e el Ton
15 15 -
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group disposed REZE2016F12831HILFE K&
of certain subsidiaries, namely Vanilla Rose Investment Limited & A/ T B2 A Alvanilla Rose
with its subsidiary. Net liabilities of the subsidiaries being Investment Limited & E [ B A 7] o H &
disposed of at the date of disposal were as follows: MEBARREEBBMAEFEFENT
RMB’000
ART T
Property, plant and equipment Y% BE KR& G 2
Trade and other receivables JE Y2 BR 51 I H A JE R 295
Creditors and accrued expense ERERKEERER (6,050)
Bank overdrafts RITEX (1)
Non-controlling interests IR = 4,609
Net liabilities discharged BEEaEFE (1,145)
Total consideration BRE =
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AT 2 W 1,145
Net cash flow arising from disposal HEEEZHERAFE
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of EHERESEREEED 1
During the year ended 31 December 2016, repayment to HE2016F12A31B L FE - ASEL
loan with shareholder with a principal of approximately AR #469,948,0007T & 87 FEETFIl 2 49
RMB469,948,000 and part of accrued interest of approximately AR30017,000TCHIREE %~ (58
RMB39,917,000 was offset against the proceeds from debt Ty 3 7% 2 4R B 1S 2k TE HE 4 o

restructuring.
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(a)

At 31 December 2016, the Group provided guarantees
to certain banks in respect of mortgage facilities granted
in connection with the mortgage loans entered into by
purchasers of the Group’s properties as follows:

Guarantees given to banks for mortgage

facilities granted to purchasers REER
Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, if there are any
defaults on the mortgages, the Group is responsible to repay
the outstanding mortgage principals together with accrued
interest and penalty owed by the defaulting purchasers to
banks. The Group is then entitled to take over the legal title
and possession of the related properties. The guarantees
shall be released in accordance with the terms of the
guarantee contracts, such as:

(i) upon the issue of the relevant purchaser’s property
ownership certificate and in the custody of the bank; or

(i) up to a maximum of two years after the full repayment of
mortgage loan by the relevant purchaser.

At 31 December 2016, the Directors do not consider it
probable that a claim will be made against the Group under
the above guarantees.

The fair value of the guarantees at date of inception is not
material and is not recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

At 31 December 2016, the Group has been in litigation
in relation to various claims totalled approximately
RMB264,517,000 (2015: RMB298,814,000). Based on the
legal advice obtained, the Directors believe that the Group
has reasonable good chances of successfully defending
those claims. Hence, no provision has been made in the

consolidated financial statements.

(a)

(b)

R2016F12A831H AEE L A B
REBYEE RN IREE RN R
HRIRIBREREE  mH THRTRE
BRI

2015
RMB’000
ARBTT

BN ERIEERERERRT

3,435,000

RIFER G WRBHEEDS
N AEEAREREERNENAER
RITZAEERBASEREHE
SR ARBEZRAREERBEY
%E’J/Xﬂ&%%&ﬁﬁﬁﬁé BRAERS
RIZFERS O 10

() HEAETNEEMAEZERE
RARITRE 2

(i) HEEFEREERBER LR
Z W4 o

MN2016FE12A831H BEERANE
EEEMERMEEZRENES T
j(o

EREFRNREHRBHZAAEBELTE
A B ERN RS M RRER

MN2016FE12A831H  KEE A
# AN R #264,517,0007T (20154 :
AR #208,814,00070) 2 ZH R E
MEBFLR - BEMREZEEE
8 i%ﬁﬁaﬁﬁlﬁwﬁ’ﬁ&ﬁ%
ZERERBF B WENERE
ISR ET IR -
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At 31 December 2016, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

Within one year 1R

R2016F12A31E T Al MK L HE
TEMBBZERAERBELBENOT

2015

RMB’000
ARET T

4,040

In the second to fifth years inclusive FO2FEFELF (EF5F) 160

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for its offices and staff quarters. Leases are typically
negotiated for three years and do not include contingent rentals.

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2016 not
provided for in the consolidated financial statements were as

follows:
Authorised but not contracted for BEERERRTY
Contracted but not provided for BEI B REE

4,200

REHEFREAKERERTFELE
THEENES HEAEWE=FH 8
TEEFIAEE -

R2016F12 431 B W K47 A M ®wE
REEZ BAEENT

2015
RMB’000
ARETT

83,660
135,825

219,485



(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 38 FT1g40 ' LAA REITHR)

In addition to those related party transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had the following transactions and balances with related
parties during the year:

The key management personnel of the Group comprises all
Directors, details of their emoluments were disclosed in note
13 to the financial statements.

BREGAVBRREMML T RENZS
FEALR S RERIN AERBEEREA
ITRFANRZ RAERINT

AREBNFTEEEBEASREMESE
EORENFHNFBRERTBRE
BIEE13 ©

2015
RMB’000
ARET T
Included in trade and other receivables T A FE U BR 3K F L th JE s K
Amount due from a related company, e —REE R R (BT
which is beneficially owned and EFFAREELEERH
controlled by Mr. Chau Cheok Wa, an B RS I8
executive Director =
Included in bank and other borrowings FFARITREMEER
Amount due to a shareholder, which is B —RBRE (ARITE
beneficially owned and controlled by FREERERE T H
Mr. Chau Cheok Wa, an executive EE(HITESRHEIE
Director and Mr. Cheng Ting Kong, T i@ ERER
the spouse of Ms. Yeung So Miu, an 2 ) RIE
executive Director 440,159
Amount due to a shareholder, which is B —RRE (ARITE
beneficially owned and controlled by FREELAEESHS
Mr. Chau Cheok Wa, an executive K2 6)) 5RI8
Director =
Included in trade and other payables, and  &F A JETBR 7K~ E b FE X
accruals LIERE A
Accrual interest payable to a shareholder, Bt — &R (H#HITE
which is beneficially owned and FREELERET B
controlled by Mr. Chau Cheok Wa, an Sk (RITESHEE
executive Director and Mr. Cheng Ting T BE)ERER
Kong, the spouse of Ms. Yeung So Mui, RzEH) 2 T S
an executive Director 30,590
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Included in finance costs
Interest accrued for the shareholder’s
loan, which is beneficially owned and
controlled by Mr. Chau Cheok Wa, an
executive Director and Mr. Cheng Ting
Kong, the spouse of Ms. Yeung So Mui,
an executive Director
Interest expense on shareholder’s
loan, which is beneficially owned and
controlled by Mr. Chau Cheok Wa, an
executive Director
Included in income from agency services
Income from Mr. Chau Cheok Wa, an
executive Director and Ms. Chan Wai-
Leng, a related person with Mr. Chau
Cheok Wa

FEABNE A

BERER (HBTESH
IBEEERBT ELE
(ATEEHREBRLTZ
@) Eals RiZEH)
i) FE &t 7B

BERER (HRTESH
IREREBERER RMIT
i) e A S8 A

SFARERIBRA
KEATEFRIEFELE
MEEBALRIER K
TR A

2015
RMB’000
ARET T

8,803
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The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets and liabilities of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would in the opinion
of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive length. The
class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

Place of
incorporation
or Issued
Name of registration Place of and paid
subsidiaries HMALL  operation up capital
WEARER ERHE  SEny BRTRRAER
Access Achievement BVI The PRC US$10,000
Limited ZB4AR TH 10,000£ T
BE
Sun Century Property Group Company  The PRC ~ The PRC RMB299,000,000
Limited i hE AR %299,000,0007
AGtEEHEEEERAR
Shenzhen Zirui Real Estate ThePRC  The PRC RMB21,000,000
Development Limited HE meE AR%21,000,0007
MIZREHEREARAT
Shenzhen Sun Era Management ThePRC  The PRC RMB1,000,000
Company Limited i ket AR 1,000,000
AT AEEREEARAT
Shenzhen Guang Long City Commercial The PRC The PRC RMB1,000,000
Management Company Limited G nE AR 1,000,000

MImERYAFERARAT

TRIEHI X

BYEARERE BER

BENNMBARNFE - EFERA 2H]
HMBRARFEHERARFBAR

TR -FrmB AN
REBR -

Percentage

ownership

interest/

voting power/

profit sharing
ElkErRRL/
REE/ENASY

Direct
Ef
%

100

Indirect

HE

Principal
activities

IRRH

Investment holding
RERR

Property development
and property
investment

NERERMERE
Property development

RS

Property management

NEER

Property management
NEER

s B B R 40 28 5

Legal form

EEFA

Private limited liabilities
company

BABRAT

Wholly foreign owned
enterprises

IEEELR

Limited liabilities
company

BRRA

Limited liabilities
company
BRATF

Limited liabilities
company

ERAR



Name of
subsidiaries

i PR

Chaohu Boshing Tourism Development

Company Limited

EHEARERERRAA

Fushun Sun Era Property Development

Company Limited*

BEABEREHERSARAA

Sun Travel Ltd.
ABEEERAR

Suncity Group Management And

Consultantcy Limited

ABHERERRRARLA

# 10% of the registered share capital of the subsidiary was not paid-up by the

Place of

incorporation

or

registration Place of
HMELY  operation
Bag¥  SEny

ThePRC  The PRC
i P

ThePRC  The PRC

Gl HE
Macau Macau
il 2
Macau Macau
il 2

non-controlling shareholder.

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan unless otherwise indicated) (k& 348 FT1g40 LA A R¥ITHR)

Issued
and paid
up capital

BRAREAER

US$7,000,000
7,000,000% 7T

1S$23,000,000
23,000,000%7
US520,700,000
20,700,000% 7T

MOP1,500,000
1,500,000 5%

MOP25,000
25,0001 F3

Percentage
ownership
interest/
voting power/
profit sharing
ElgaREs/
RER/ENASY

Direct Indirect

:E:: [
% %

Principal
activities

IERH

Property development

UEES

Property development

VELES

Travel Agency Service

igieid e

Hotel and integrated
resort management
and consultancy
service

BERGAERITER
G

Legal form

EEFA

Wholly foreign owned
enterprises

NEEELE
Limited liabilities

company
BRAR

Limited company

BRAA

Limited company

BRAA

fORERBRRARBBEZMB AR EMBRADN

10% °
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Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that has material non- BERFERER 2 ANEBMNB QR
controlling interests are set out below: BEF AT
2015
Percentage of equity interest held by non- R ERTF AN
controlling interests of: RAERE DL :
Vanilla Rose Group Vanilla Rosef: & 49%
Fushun Sun Era Real Estate Development I8 A< B B A
Company B ERBEER AT 10%
2015
RMB’000
ARET T

Loss for the year allocated to non-controlling 7 Bt T FE#E IR #E 25 2

interests of: REFEE -
Vanilla Rose Group Vanilla Rose& & 698
Fushun Sun Era Real Estate Development 0 JIE K 5 B AR

Company EHERZERR AR 227

Dividend paid to non-controlling interests of: BT IEIEMRAEZS 2 I B, -

Vanilla Rose Group Vanilla Rosef: -
Fushun Sun Era Real Estate Development I K F5 B AR

Company EHEREER AT =
Accumulated balances of non-controlling Rk E H B R

interests of at the reporting dates FEVER T RIEE 2A
Vanilla Rose Group Vanilla Rose% & (4,604)
Fushun Sun Era Real Estate Development I K 5 B K

Company EHERBEER AR (613)
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The following table illustrates the summarised financial TRFPEMHB AR EEREE -

information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed P B8 /) & B8 30 R H1 BR (E (0] 2 BB Y
are before any inter-company eliminations: 8 -

Fushun Sun Era
Vanilla Rose Group Real Estate Development Company
BIEAREAR
Vanilla Rose % [ FRERBERAR

2015 2015

RMB'000 RMB'000

NG S AREFT

Revenue Wiz 546 -

Cost of sales and total expenses HERAREHY 1,972 2,268

Loss for the year TEEB 1,426 2,268

Total comprehensive loss for the year TEREBBRER 1,426 2,268

Current assets MBEE 687 122,009

Non-current assets FRYEE 3 499

Current liabilties REAE 10,086 268

Non-current liabilities FRBAE - =

On 8 February 2013, the Company received a writ of summons M2013F2H8H ' AR |l & B AT & H

issued out of the court with respect to the dispute between MEARLSK AAENEREEEEE

CCB International Asset Management Limited (the “CCBI”) as BERAR ([BEHE]) (EBRE)

the plaintiff with the Company as one of the defendants (the HARNE (ERESZ ) 2FEFHE

“Action”). For the avoidance of doubt, Grand Prosperity Limited ([5F7A)) - B 1F5E - Grand Prosperity

(“Grand Prosperity”), Mr. Zeng Yunshu, being a director of Grand Limited ([ Grand Prosperity |) + & E1&

Prosperity and the then chairman and president of the Company %t 4 (Grand ProsperityZ 8 & K AR

and Mr. Zeng Sheng, being a director of Grand Prosperity and AERZERREF)OREEBELEE (A

the then vice-chairman of the Company, have been joined as the Grand ProsperityZ 8= R AR A& B2

other defendants.

BIEF) MRS B E AR E
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On 4 February 2016, CCBI, Grand Prosperity, the Company,
Mr. Zeng Yunshu and Mr. Zeng Sheng entered into a settlement
deed (the “Settlement Deed”) pursuant to which the parties to
the Settlement Deed agreed that, in full and final settlement of
the dispute in the Action (including legal costs incurred by CCBI
in connection with the Action and interest):

(@) each of Grand Prosperity, Mr. Zeng Yunshu and Mr. Zeng
Sheng shall jointly and severally pay a total sum of HK$25
million to CCBI, of which HK$3 million shall be payable
within one business day of execution of the Settlement Deed
(the “First Payment”) and the remaining balance of HK$22
million shall be payable on 31 December 2016;

(b) each of Grand Prosperity, Mr. Zeng Yunshu and Mr. Zeng
Sheng shall jointly and severally indemnify and keep
indemnified CCBI against any liabilities, losses, damages,
claims, costs and expenses incurred or suffered by CCBI
(including but not limited to all legal expenses and other
professional fees on a full indemnity basis) as a result of or in
connection with CCBI’s enforcement of paragraph (a) above
in the event of any non-payment; and

(c) CCBI shall on due performance by Grand Prosperity, Mr.
Zeng Yunshu and/or Mr. Zeng Sheng, as the case may be,
of paragraph (a) above (the “Settlement Date”), transfer a
total of 8 million shares in the Company (the “Settlement
Shares”) to Grand Prosperity (or a nominee designated by
Grand Prosperity), free from any encumbrances and with all
rights attached to the Settlement Shares in accordance with
the terms of the Settlement Deed.

R2016F2H48 2R B K - Grand
Prosperity* "2 ]~ B =B £ & BBt
RN — MR (TRBRRZIE]) &
WMBREZTHNEFRE A2 RE
RERRFAR 2 FZEH (RIEERERE
HFDRBREZEEARFE) :

(a) Grand Prosperity * & E & % £ & g
Bk £ B R RE R M EE R E
BX % i 42 %825,000,000/8 7t * H A
3,000,000/ TR 2 B M R i 2
—EAEEBRZMA ([HEHAEH]) R
#2 %822,000,000% 7T ZH R20164F12
A31A Xt

(o) Grand Prosperity* & Z4& 5t 4 & @ s
SR B R R Bl R E R R B BRI
ERERBRERERRERRE AN
FAE RN FRIE R TR E R8T
EX@BMBREIEZZERMNEE
BX BE RE KARRX (81
BTRR—IIEEATIREMEES
A(RZERERE)) R

(c) #&Grand Prosperity * & E & % £ &
SREBEE (RIBRME)ZARE
TEX(@B® ([FFEAE]) 2R
Bl B ZE AR IR AN AR 22 4% 2 {6 5K M Grand
Prosperity ( 8t Grand Prosperity#g
ELRBAEBZBARA 2 & H#
8,000,000 f& 3 (MR (H 1) - T
Bt 755 fr) 2 4 B 92 R LG R AR AR 1) PR
B2 BRER -
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Pursuant to the Settlement Deed, in consideration of the due
performance by Grand Prosperity, Mr. Zeng Yunshu and/or Mr.
Zeng Sheng, as the case may be, and CCBI of their obligations
above, among others, each of Grand Prosperity, the Company,
Mr. Zeng Yunshu and Mr. Zeng Sheng has waived any and all
legal and beneficial rights to the remaining 18 million shares in
the Company held by CCBI as at the date after the Settlement
Date, including any and all actual or potential rights and claims,
whether present or future and whether known or unknown to
them, of whatsoever nature which any of them now has, or
thereafter may have, against CCBI in respect of such shares.

The parties to the Settlement Deed further agreed that upon
due performance by Grand Prosperity, Mr. Zeng Yunshu and/
or Mr. Zeng Sheng, as the case may be, of its payment of the
First Payment, the parties, through their solicitors, shall forthwith
sign and the solicitors for CCBI shall forthwith file in the Action
a consent summons for an order by consent that, among
others, CCBI's claim against Grand Prosperity, the Company,
Mr. Zeng Yunshu and Mr. Zeng Sheng and Grand Prosperity’s
counterclaim against CCBI in the Action be dismissed, with no
order as to costs as between them and without further order of
the court, save that the costs of the Company be paid by Grand
Prosperity, Mr. Zeng Yunshu and Mr. Zeng Sheng in equal share
in any event to be taxed if not agreed. The consent summons
was filed on 5 February 2016.

Details of the Action and the Settlement Deed, please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated 14 December 2012,
14 February 2013 and 11 February 2016.

1R F R 22 4% - E R Grand Prosperity *
CEREER/HGHLERBERT
E)RERBEBEZAEBT EXESZ
H1E - Hed - Grand Prosperity * &R 2 &)
EERLERBBEESAE NERM
fEAHIE 2 BEBRHBFAQRSBT
18,000,0008% I& 13 2 fE 1] & — ¥ & & &
BN BEESEA—TRZERG
MRFHER - Sk R P aE R ST T R B IR
ZEMME 2 FAR—ER L ETE
MRZRE (TRAERKBEHURTHR
BEERMMBRTANER) -

MBRBE NS HE—ZRE RN
Grand Prosperity « & E4& % 4 K 8 &
BERE(RBEAME)ZRBRITXNES
AN zB FTNSH(BBEZFEZE
) ZEBRZEREREBR 2 EMAL
RZXFARACAEERE LNBEFESH
B (EPBE)FRPREREREEGrand
Prosperity* "2 &)« @ EMB AR BBt
4 7 R{E LA K Grand Prosperity#f & iR
B2 REFERER BTMERBBES ZH
DREZMURTEL R ZE— S0
MEGrand Prosperity « & Z4& 4t 4 & 2
EETMAEZTRAEBBRATHESM
KRR ZDERIN AIZERER20165F
2ABRIRA -

BRAFDRINEH R IFR B2HEAQ
AIBHAD AIA2012F12 H14H ~ 201342
HA14B &2016F2 8118 2 A ff e
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The Group had no material event after the reporting period.

(1)

The Company granted a total of 150,000,000 share
options (the “Options”) to the eligible participants on 11
January 2017, under the share option scheme adopted by
the Company on 2 June 2016, to subscribe for a total of
150,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the
share capital of the Company with the exercise price of
HK$0.202 per share. Details please refer the announcement
of the Company dated 11 January 2017.

Sun Travel entered into (i) a hotel accommodation
procurement agreement; and (ii) a ferry ticket supply
agreement with Sun City Gaming Promotion Company

Limited (“Sun City Gaming Promotion”) on 6 February 2017.

The hotel accommodation procurement agreement has a
term commencing from the date of approval of the hotel
accommodation procurement agreement at the EGM to
be held on 31 March 2017 and convened and ending
on 31 December 2017. During the term of the hotel
accommodation procurement agreement, Sun Travel may
from time to time procure from Sun City Gaming Promotion,
and Sun City Gaming Promotion may from time to time
supply to Sun Travel, the Hotel Accommodation Products,
subject to the cap of HK$120,000,000.

The ferry ticket supply agreement has a term of three
years commencing from 6 February 2017 and ending on
31 December 2019 (both dates inclusive). During the term
of the ferry ticket supply agreement, Sun City Gaming
Promotion may from time to time purchase from Sun
Travel, and Sun Travel may from time to time supply to
Sun City Gaming Promotion, the ferry tickets and other
complementary services, subject to the annual caps of
HK$8,500,000, HK$10,000,000 and HK$10,000,000 for
each of the three years (commencing from 6 February 2017)
during the term.

Details please refer the announcement of the Company
dated 6 February 2017 and the circular of the Company
dated 8 March 2017.

AEERBERRIBERNEIHEL -

(1)

R2017FE1A11H AR FERE
ZﬁﬁﬂEAzomeSHzEwqua%%
B E REERSEARLEEHR
150,000,00015 3R R&HE ([RRE])

A LAA §%0.2028 T 2 1T B R
4 #£150,000,0008% &K 2 7H§$EP
REEOAOE T E @M -FIBHE

BARRR2017F1A 1B TR ZA

& o

MR2017F2 A6H + A5 ik 7 B2 K 5 4
BEAN—ABRRA ([ KB5S
TR ) BT AL ()E S (78 PR 75 2R B 1
# R EHERZ-
BIEEEREEBHAOBAR IR
201753 A31EE TRITREHMR
RERIAE EBEBEEERBERE
Tﬁ%?izat%zowimﬂmai
(BREERMA) - NBIEEERBEE
& 1% /O HAPR 1 + KBS iR 382 AT T B 1A
R ER RN mABRER
AR 9T A S B[R] K RS R 202 6 PR OB JE (E

B R = f - _EBR A&120,000,0007%
ﬁo
MEHEERZAP=F 5201742

Ae6H# - 20194128318 1F (8
EEEMA) RMEREREND
R KSEIER RN A A KB
B 357 B B - T K B K 0 ) S Bs () KBS
REYFNHEREREMREER
%oHRA(B2017F2868 )=
FEFHFE LR 5 548,500,000
7 7t » 10,000,000/% 7t % 10,000,000
BT °

HIBEBEEMARRRK2017F286H
T3 7 A& R201743 880 T3~
WK o
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The Company proposed to change its English name of
the Company from “SUN CENTURY GROUP LIMITED” to
“SUNCITY GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED” and to adopt the
Chinese name “A 54k EEEAR BR A F)" as the dual foreign
name of the Company to replace its existing Chinese name
“KIGHE 40 £ B AR A F)” on 6 February 2017. The proposed
change of company name is conditional upon the satisfied
of (i) the passing of a special resolution by the shareholders
of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting to be
held on 31 March 2017 to approve the proposed change
of company name; and (i) the Registrar of Companies in
the Cayman lIslands approving the proposed new English
name and the dual foreign name in Chinese of the Company.
Details please refer the announcement of the Company
dated 6 February 2017 and the circular of the Company
dated 8 March 2017.

Suncity Group Management and Consultancy Limited
(“SGMCL”), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a memorandum of understanding
(the “MOU") with an independent third party (the “Project
Owner”), regarding the provision of consultancy and
management services to an integrated resort project to be
developed by the Project Owner in Vietnam (the “Project”)
on 27 February 2017.

Pursuant to the MOU, SGMCL and the Project Owner shall
negotiate in good faith with an aim to enter into a formal
agreement relating to the provision of consultancy and
management services (the “Technical Service Agreement”)
and a formal management agreement (the “Management
Agreement”) relating to the provision of consultancy and
management services by SGMCL in respect of the Project.

(3)

R2017F2A6H AR R EZEX
% % B\ [SUN CENTURY GROUP
LIMITED ] E 2 & [SUNCITY
GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED | - if
R X2 [ KB EBIZERAR
NEBARRARIREFINE R - A
BRRERAEFNEE [ AGELEE
BRAT] o FEHRBE A RBBEAER)
A& 7201793 431 B BT AR &5 5
Ag BRI ERZFERAREHE 2
BARZRE: k(A SES Q=M
Bt AR R B R R TR B R
NEEINELEEFUEE FIER
BRI AR B R201742 868 T3 2
NER2017FIASH FI B 2 F K -

R2017F2H27H AR AEEEE
MBARALBEBREEEMERA
Al ([KRIGHERRM])E—2E 7
F=F([BEEHEBAL AL —HR
RESE ([RBEESE]) ABAE
FARIE B A AR A F 3 — (&
mEEMBMNIER ([1HEB])RHEERN
MERR o

REBFRFETE KGN EERER K
HERAEARERER EEFILA
B4 (B ) & B IR AR A O IE 3 A
(IR gl R B RABWE
EERRER REERREERBEH
EXER G ([EEiHE])
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(4) (Cont’d)

It is contemplated that the services by SGMCL under
the Technical Service Agreement shall include the
Management’s review of and providing advices regarding
certain pre-opening matters provided that the actual scope
of the Technical Service Agreement shall be subject to the
actual terms of the Technical Service Agreement.

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Technical Service
Agreement, the pre-opening consultancy service fee shall be
US$500,000 for an initial period of twelve months from the
signing of the Technical Service Agreement.

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Management
Agreement, the expected term of the Management
Agreement shall commence from the opening of the Project
and until the expiry of 10 years or termination of the
investment registration certificate of the Project, whichever is
earlier.

Details please refer the announcement of the Company
dated 27 February 2017.

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the Board on 24 March 2017.

(4)

(%)

FART ARSI E 12 B R AR R BT R 75 1
ZORB K REARE TRENEEN
EEEEZIRERER MR RS
175 % H B % o [ 7B 42 5 T AR 7% 19 7 O

= =
BERIER-

1B & 1 i AR 75 155 5% B0 16 SR R AR 1 -
HEBEBERMARBMELNIA+
EABMEORAEINBREREER A
500,0003 T °

RIRE I 15 % MY IR SR S MR 1 - B R 169
ZNEFHRGERERAEERES
TFEEMKERREEMEER L
(ABRBEERE) -

HBEBEEARRNR2017F2A27H
BRIk /N

BEEEDN2017FE3 A24 B #t &I BT
B ERE -
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